
 

 

 
Regular Council Meeting 

Agenda 
Glenwood Community Hall (90 Main Avenue) 

Thursday, November 18, 2021 at 7:00pm 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

To access the supporting documents to this agenda, first download the agenda to your own 
computer/device, then look for them as attachments to the .pdf agenda document. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Prayer 

 
3. Adoption of Agenda 

 
4. Adoption of Previous Minutes: 

a) 2021.11.01 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 
 

5. Delegations: 
a) RCMP 
b) Road Closure - ORRSC 

 
6. Items for Discussion and/or Action: 

a) Budget discussion – CFO Hakon Skoien 
b) Bylaw 133-2021 Draft Regional Assessment Agreement & Bylaw 
c) Bylaw Officer Bylaw #    -2021 – to be presented in December 
d) Remove Darrell Edwards from Municipal Planning Commission and Add David Rolfson 
e) Christmas – Pot luck, Turkey/Ham, Caroling  
f) Christmas Bonuses 
g) How can we help you – information- to be presented in December  
h) Self-assessment study 
i) Zooming Council meetings  

 
7. Councillor Reports: 

• Mayor Allred 
• Deputy Mayor Holthe 
• Councillor Law 
• Councillor Lybbert 
• Councillor Peterson 

 
8. CAO Report: 

a) Training / Meetings Attended  
b) Office Closures  
c) Projects 
d) General update on Village  

 
9. Financial Reports: 

a) Accounts Payable Cheques for October 2021 (20210347-20210390) 



Page 2 of 2 

b) Budget vs Actual Review October 2021 
c) Bank Reconciliation – None at Present 

10. Correspondence: 
a)  2021 Alberta SW Board Minutes 08-04 approved   
b) 2021Alberta SW Board Meeting Notes 09-01 accepted 
c) CCES. MINUTES Nov 4, 2021 
d) CCES. MINUTES Oct 7, 2021 
e) CCES. organizational mtg21 
f) cmrswa MINUTES 09-21 
g) Covid-19 Municipal Update (2021-11-10) 
h) Fortis Glenwood  

 
11. Closed Meeting: 

a) Land, Legal or Labour Matters As per Section 24(b)(i) of the FOIP Act     
 

12. Adjournment: 
 

 





Alberta SouthWest Regional Alliance 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting 


Wednesday August 4, 2021-Cowley and District Community Hall 
 


Board Representatives 


Barney Reeves, Waterton 


Jim Bester, Cardston County 


Scott Korbett, Pincher Creek 


Blair Painter, Crowsnest Pass 


Dennis Barnes, Cardston 


Brad Schlossberger, Claresholm  


Terry Yagos, MD Pincher Creek 


Victor Czop, Nanton  


John Van Driesten, MD Willow Creek 


Brent Feyter, Fort Macleod 


Dale Gugala, Stavely 


Warren Mickels, Cowley 


 


Resource Staff and Guest Councillor 


Mary Kittlaus, Cowley 


Bev Thornton, AlbertaSW  


 
 


1 Call to Order and Welcome Chair Barney Reeves called the meeting to order. 


 


2 Approval of Agenda Moved by Dennis Barnes THAT the agenda be approved with addition of 


office space rental added to item #7. 


Carried. [2021-08-738] 


 


3 Approval of Minutes  Moved by Scott Korbett THAT the minutes of May 5, 2021 be approved as 


presented. 


Carried. [2021-08-739] 


 


4 Approval of Cheque Register Moved by Warren Mickels THAT cheques #2940 to #2955 be approved as 


presented. 


Carried. [2021-08-740] 


 


5 Board Executive Meeting Board discussed notes of July7, 2021Executive Meeting. Consensus is that 


continuity planning and transition should be inclusive of CAOs, EDOs and 


partners, and begin prior to October municipal election. 


 


6 Alberta Opportunity Book Invest Alberta Corporation is developing a “Deal Book” to promote 


investment opportunities. Communities and businesses are invited to submit 


details. Contact Bev for the template and upcoming submission deadlines. 


 


7 Budget and Operations  -Financial resources are sustainable for the next 2 years. 


-Alberta Infrastructure is changing no-cost lease policy in provincial buildings; 


AlbertaSW office is under review. 


 


8 Executive Director Report Accepted as information. 


 


9 Round Table Updates Accepted as information. 


 


10 Upcoming Meetings ➢ September 1, 2021: regional planning session (tentative). 


 


11 Adjourn  Moved by John Van Driesten THAT the meeting be adjourned.  


Carried. [2021-08-741] 


    


  Chair 


Approved November 3, 2021 


 


  


  Secretary/Treasurer 


 








1 


Alberta SouthWest Regional Alliance 
Notes from Board, CAOs, EDOs Special Meeting  


Wednesday September 1, 2021-Heritage Inn, Pincher Creek 
 


Board Representatives 


Dr. Brian (Barney)Reeves, Waterton  


Jim Bester, Cardston County  


Scott Korbett, Pincher Creek 


Brent Feyter, Fort Macleod 


Brad Schlossberger, Claresholm 


Warren Mickels, Cowley 


Bev Everts, MD Pincher Creek 


Blair Painter, Crowsnest Pass 


Dale Gugala 


 


CAOs  


Scott Barton, Waterton 


Abe Tinney, Claresholm 


 


EDOs and Planners 


Angel Issac, Cardston 


Jay Hallet, MD Willow Creek 


Brady Schnell, Claresholm 


Marie Everts, Pincher Creek 


 


Guests and Resource Staff 


MLA Roger Reid 


Yvonne Chau, Travel Alberta 


Natalie Gibson, InnoVsions  


Brock Skretting, KAR 


Tony Walker, CFABSW 


Sacha Anderson CFCNP 


Bev Thornton, AlbertaSW 


 


1. Barney Reeves called the meeting to order and welcomed guests to the Special Meeting. 


 


2. Round table introductions 


Each guest introduced and offered few words about a special event or insight gained over the last year. 


 


3. A Regional Update 


Purpose of the meeting is to review AlbertaSW operations and key projects, to ensure communities have an 


information reference to transition smoothly through the October municipal elections. 


Bev Thornton commented on the Regional Project Overview that was distributed as a hard copy 


 


4. Socially distanced supper: Seated at tables of 4; Roast beef menu served cafeteria-style. 


 


5. Current and Ongoing Projects: 


BASTION (Building A Sustainable Investment Opportunity Network 


Natalie Gibson, InnoVisions and Associates and Yvonne Chau, Travel Alberta, Manager Tourism Development 


provided an overview of this project to conduct research, engage communities and businesses in identifying, 


developing and promoting investment opportunities and implementing a system of ongoing data collection. 


 


WE LOVE ALBERTA FILM: FILM FRIENDLY SOUTHWEST ALBERTA 


Bev Thornton, AlbertaSW and Brock Skretting, Head of Advocacy, Keep Alberta Rolling (KAR), described 


plans to celebrate the rich history of film-making in our region, increase community awareness of the 


importance of being prepared for opportunity. This will be implemented in partnership with all our Chamber 


offices. The project is sponsored jointly by AlbertaSW and Community Futures Southwest. 


 


PROMOTING INVESTMENT OPPORTUNITIES 


AlbertaSW is also working with SouthGrow, Economic Development Lethbridge, Palliser Economic 


Partnership, Regional Innovation Network partners and Invest Alberta to identify and promote investment 


opportunities in all key sectors: Agriculture, Energy and Tourism  
 


6. Helping each other succeed? 


Natalie Gibson, InnoVisions and Associates, led a facilitated discussion to capture key issues and best ideas. 


There will be additional follow-up on the very good ideas generated. 


 


8. Outgoing Chair Barney Reeves was recognized and thanked for his decades of commitment to the region. 


Event adjourned. 


 








MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD NOVEMBER 4, 
2021 AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING  
 
Board Members Present:    
Mike Nish – Village of Hill Spring    Paula Brown – Town of Cardston 
John Grainger – Town of Cardston   Tom Nish – Cardston County 
Cam Francis - Cardston County  
                 
Others Present:  
Danny Melvin – Fire Chief        Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer 
Spencer Olsen – Deputy Fire Chief                    
                               
Commenced at 5:04 p.m.  
 
Danny Melvin in the chair.                                                              
  
Opening Prayer: Cam Francis 
  
AGENDA  
  
Paula Brown moved to approve the agenda.                                   Carried  
  
MINUTES  


The minutes of the October 7, 2021, meeting was discussed.    


Tom Nish moved to accept the minutes of the October 7, 2021, meeting.                        Carried 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
  
Danny Melvin introduced what the Authority is in charge of and presented an information sheet for each 
councillor to review and ask questions. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that fire hydrants are being flushed by the Town of Cardston but are not being 
tested.  Danny is concerned that there are not enough fire hydrants available within Town limits and will 
provide information to the Town of Cardston Councillors. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that there is an addition planned for the Fire Hall and approval was made for the 
drawings and engineering costs. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that he would work with Jeff Shaw, CAO Town of Cardston, regarding the AHS 
Contract to streamline it to fit the Authority’s needs. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that the October Emergency Services statistics are as follows: 4 MVC’s, 1 false 
alarm, and 2 grass fires. 







MINUTES CCES MEETING NOVEMBER 4, 2021 
 


2 
 


Danny Melvin presented the 2022 Budget with an increase of $191 to the requisitions.  
 
21-05 John Grainger moved to approve the 2022 Budget as presented.           Carried 
 
The board would like Danny to look into mandatory building inspections in conjunction with business 
license renewal and registration. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that the Glenwood area will have two captain positions.  A decision will be made on 
the three candidates that applied within the next few weeks. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that meetings are the first Thursday of each month other than the summer months 
unless the board decides otherwise. 
 
Cam Francis moved to approve Danny Melvin’s report.                              Carried  
 
ADJOURNMENT  


Paula Brown moved to adjourn.                                       Carried  


Adjournment at 6:09 p.m. 


Next board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, December 2, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. at the Cardston County 
Emergency Services Building.    


  


              
Chairman   





		MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD NOVEMBER 4, 2021 AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING

		MINUTES

		NEW BUSINESS

		ADJOURNMENT






MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD OCTOBER 7, 
2021 AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING  
 
Board Members Present:    
Don Shideler – Village of Hill Spring   Gerry Selk – Town of Cardston 
Tim Court – Town of Cardston    Royce Leavitt – Cardston County 
                 
Others Present:  
Danny Melvin – Fire Chief        Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer                    
                               
Commenced at 5:03 p.m.  
  
Gerry Selk in the chair.                                                              
  
Opening Prayer: Tim Court 
  
AGENDA  
  
Tim Court moved to approve the agenda.                                   Carried  
  
MINUTES  


The minutes of the September 2, 2021, meeting was discussed.    


Royce Leavitt moved to accept the minutes of the September 2, 2021, meeting.                        Carried 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
  
Danny Melvin reported that the September Emergency Services statistics are as follows: 7 MVC’s, 2 MFR’s, 2 
structure fires, 1 combine fire and 1 false alarm fire. 
 
21-03 Royce Leavitt moved to approve the audited 2020 Statement of Financial Position as presented by 


the Mercer Wilde Group in September.              Carried 
 
Danny Melvin advised that the drawings and engineering will be approximately $6,100 for the Fire Hall 
expansion. 
 
21-04  Don Shideler moved to have the drawings and engineering for the Fire Hall completed.          Carried 
 
Danny Melvin reported that he has started working on the 2021 Budget which shows a slight increase in 
requisition fees. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that the Authority responded to 113 calls in Waterton for the summer and 25% 
required transport.  Danny is waiting for one more payment from Waterton. 
 







MINUTES CCES MEETING OCTOBER 7, 2021 
 


2 
 


Danny Melvin reported that the job posting for Doral Lybbert’s position is 2 captains instead of one fire chief 
and closes October 29, 2021.  
 
Danny Melvin advised that calls are up 37% from last year for the Authority.  
 
Danny Melvin reported that there is a potential of 2 more fire volunteers for Hill Spring. 
 
Tim Court moved to approve Danny Melvin’s report.                              Carried  
 
ADJOURNMENT  


Royce Leavitt moved to adjourn.                                       Carried  


Adjournment at 5:11 p.m. 


Next board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, November 4, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. at the Cardston County 
Emergency Services Building.    


  


              
Chairman   





		MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD OCTOBER 7, 2021 AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING

		MINUTES

		NEW BUSINESS

		ADJOURNMENT






MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
HELD NOVEMBER 4, 2021, AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING. 


Authority Members Present: 


Paula Brown – Town of Cardston   John Grainger – Town of Cardston 
Tom Nish – Cardston County    Mike Nish – Village of Hill Spring 
Cam Francis - Cardston County 
 
Others Present: 


Danny Melvin – Fire Chief        Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer       
Spencer Olsen – Deputy Fire Chief              


Commenced at 5:00 p.m. 


Suzanne Pierson in the Chair. 
 
Chairman 


Suzanne Pierson asked for nominations for Chairman. 
John Grainger moved to nominate Paula Brown. 
Suzanne Pierson asked for nominations a second and third time. 
Cam Francis moved that nominations for Chairman cease. 
Paula Brown is acting Chairman. 
 
 
Vice-Chairman 
 
Suzanne Pierson asked for nominations for Vice-Chairman. 
Cam Francis moved to nominate Tom Nish. 
Suzanne Pierson asked for nominations a second and third time. 
Paula Brown moved that nominations for Vice-Chairman cease. 
Tom Nish is acting Vice-Chairman.   
 
Tom Nish moved adjournment of the organizational meeting.           Carried 
 
Adjournment at 5:04 p.m. 
 
 
 
        
Chairman       








MINUTES OF THE CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION MEETING HELD 
SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 at the Town of Raymond or via Zoom. 


Members Present: 
 
Gerry Selk – Town of Cardston    Philip Wright – Town of Milk River 
Russ Barnett – Town of Magrath  Randy Taylor – County of Warner 
Wayne Harris – Cardston County  Tyler Lindsay – Village of Warner  
Bryce Coppieters – Town of Raymond  Tanya Smith – Village of Coutts 
David Rolfson – Village of Glenwood  Matthew Foss – Village of Stirling 
Lawrence Mistaken Chief – Blood Tribe 
        
Others Present: 
 
Lee Beazer – Operator    Kurtis Pratt – Interim SEO (CAO - Town of Raymond) 
Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer 
       
Commenced at 4:36 pm   


Randy Taylor in the Chair. 


AGENDA 


Bryce Coppieters moved that the agenda be adopted as presented.     Carried 


MINUTES      


David Rolfson moved that the minutes of the July 21, 2021 board meeting be adopted as presented. 
             Carried 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Kurtis Pratt, Interim SEO, presented a request for decision regarding the SEO position.  The board 
discussed each municipality’s opinion regarding the SEO position. 
 
Lawrence arrived at 5:05 p.m. 
 
21-25 Tanya Smith moved to have Kurtis Pratt work until the end of September with Lee Beazer to set- 


up a job description and advertise for the SEO position.      Carried 
 
The SEO presented a draft COVID-19 policy for the board to review.  


21-26 Matthew Foss moved that the Commission receive legal counsel regarding the COVID-19 Policy. 
             Carried 


The board discussed a truck driver back-up plan if all employees at the Landfill become sick or injured.  
Wayne Harris suggested that some municipalities provide an employee to spend the day with the 
Operator and Truck Drivers to learn the routes and routine for a back-up. 







MINUTES CMRSWSC MEETING SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 
 


2 
Printed: 2021-09-28 


The Operator reported that 1,051.44 tonnes of waste were delivered to the Landfill in July 2021 and 
990.09 tonnes of waste were delivered to the Landfill in August 2021.  The year-to-date total is 7,275.08 
tonnes and no waste has been diverted.   
 
The Operator advised that the employees have enrolled in a course with Gateway Safety Training to 
fulfill the safety training requirements with the Department of Transportation.  The employees are also 
taking a 1st Aid Training course. 
 
The Operator reported that the old packer is gone to Finning and the cheque should be received in a few 
days. 
 
The Operator advised that the bobcat will be put out for sealed bids. 
 
Wayne Harris moved to approve the Operator’s report.       Carried 
 
Russ Barnett excused at 5:57 p.m. 
 
Financial Statement 


The Financial Statement for July 31, 2021 was reviewed.    


Gerry Selk moved to accept the July 31, 2021, Financial Statement.      Carried 


Approval of Bills  


Bills for the month of July and August 2021 were reviewed.  


Tanya Smith moved to approve the bills for July and August 2021.        Carried 


Suzanne Pierson presented the Year-to-Date Budget as of the end of August 2021. 


Bryce Coppieters moved to file the Year-to-Date Budget for information.     Carried 


Wayne Harris excused at 6:06 p.m. 


Kurtis Pratt presented a Diversion Incentive Proposal for the board’s consideration.  The proposal would 
like to see organics included with an increase in the incentive per tonne. 


21-27 Gerry Selk moved to defer discussion until the next board meeting regarding the Diversion 
Incentive Proposal.          Carried 


CORRESPONDENCE 
 
A Notice of Public Hearing from the Cardston County regarding redesignating approximately 231.68 
acres of land from agricultural to rural commercial/industrial.          Filed 
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Gerry Selk moved meeting adjourned. 







MINUTES CMRSWSC MEETING SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 
 


3 
Printed: 2021-09-28 


Adjournment at 6:25 p.m.  


Next Commission meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, October 13, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. at the Landfill. 


 
__________________________________   
Chairman 








1
Classification: Protected A


Dr. Rosana Salvaterra, Public Health Physician


Ethan Bayne, Incident Commander, Emergency Health Operations Centre


November 10, 2021


Alberta COVID-19


Update







2
Classification: Protected A


Alberta Vaccine Coverage (November 07, 2021)


2


6,631,562 doses 
administered 


87.5% of 12+ population 
has received at least one 
dose (74.4% total 
population)


81.2% of 12+ population 
fully vaccinated (69.1% 
total population)







3
Classification: Protected A


Current State by Vaccination Status (Nov 07, 2021)


69.10%


5.3%


25.60%


Total Population


34.51%


6.50%


58.99%


Active Cases


Complete Partial Unvaccinated


24.50%


4.28%


71.22%


Hospitalized







4
Classification: Protected A


Starting November 8, 2021, A booster dose of vaccine is now available for the following higher risk 


individuals whose last dose of the initial series was at least six months ago:


• Seniors ages 70 years and older


– This is in addition to currently eligible seniors ages 75 years and older.


• First Nations, Métis and Inuit people ages 18 and older no matter where they live in Alberta 


– This is in addition to currently eligible First Nations, Metis and Inuit adults 65 years of age and 


older.


• Health-care workers who provide direct patient care and received a second dose less than 8 weeks 


after their first dose.


• People who received only two doses of AstraZeneca or one dose of Janssen can get a dose of 


mRNA vaccine, if they have not already received an mRNA dose for travel purposes.


More info at: https://www.alberta.ca/covid19-vaccine.aspx


Expanded Eligibility for Booster Dose


4



https://www.alberta.ca/covid19-vaccine.aspx





5
Classification: Protected A


COVID-19 Public Health Measures


5







6
Classification: Protected A


Enhanced Record with QR Code


As of November 15th, the only valid proof of vaccination under REP will be the enhanced record with 


QR code.


• Vaccine records from First Nations, military, other provinces, and international travellers will 


continue to be accepted after November 15th.


• Either digital or paper copy if the record will be acceptable.


• Albertans can request a printed version of the proof of vaccination with a QR code at no 


cost from a local registry agent office or by calling 811.


• Albertans can download their record online.


6



https://covidrecords.alberta.ca/home





7
Classification: Protected A


Validating the Enhanced Record


AB Covid Records Verifier App:


• The app is available for download on the Apple and Android stores.


• Using the app to validate records is encouraged, but not required by the REP.


• Organizations may choose to manually verify the vaccine information included on the enhanced 


record.


7



https://www.alberta.ca/covid-records-helpdesk.aspx#app





8
Classification: Protected A


Thank you!








 
 


 


November 4, 2021 
 
 
Mayor and Council 
Village of Glenwood 
PO Box 1084 
Glenwood, AB   T0K 2R0  
 
Dear Mayor and Council: 
 
I would like to offer the council my congratulations to all those newly elected or those returning 
to council as a result of the recent municipal election.  It takes a special individual to run for 
public office with all the current challenges that we are facing today.  On behalf of FortisAlberta 
and myself thank you for your commitment to a better future for all Albertans.  
    
I look forward to being a resource for your municipality and council, to provide support in 
meeting any future challenges and the privilege on continuing to work and build a strong 
working relationship. 
 
In addition, you will be receiving an invitation on behalf of FortisAlberta, to participate in 
Electricity 101, a course which has been designed specifically for Elected Officials and Senior 
Administration.   
 
As you focus on the work ahead, please do not hesitate to contact me if I can be of assistance, 
my contact information is below. 
 
Once again, congratulations and best wishes for a successful term. 
 
 
Sincerely, 


 
Sunny Parmar 
Stakeholder Relations Manager 
FortisAlberta 
403-333-8416 
sunny.parmar@fortisalberta.com  
 



mailto:sunny.parmar@fortisalberta.com











VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
November 1, 2021 Minutes 


 
The DRAFT Organizational  Village of Glenwood Council meeting was held at 
the Glenwood Community Hall on November 1, 2021 scheduled at 7:00 PM. 
 
In attendance: Mayor Albert Elias, Deputy Mayor David Rolfson, Councillors 
Gerry Carter, Councillor Rusty Clark and Councillors Barton Lybbert. Linda Allred, 
Milo Holthe, Steven Law, Sandra Lybbert, and Mark Peterson 
 
Officials: Chief Administrative Officer Carrie Kinahan was in attendance.  


 
 


 


 
Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes November 1, 2021 Initials: Page 1 of 2 


 


 
1. Called to Order 
 
 
2. Prayer 
 
3. Agenda Adoption 
2021.11.164 
 
 
4. Minutes Adoption 
4a) 2021.10.14 Council 
Meeting 
2021.11.165 
 
 
5. Chief Administration 
Officer: Carrie Kinahan. 
Took over as Chair of 
meeting 
 
6. Oath of Office: 
Linda Allred, Milo 
Holthe, Steven Law, 
Sandra Lybbert, Mark 
Peterson  
2021.11. 166                  
 
7. Council 
Appointments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2021.11.167 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Mayor Elias called the November 1, 2021 Organizational Council 
Meeting to order at 7:10 PM 
 
Councillor Lybbert  
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to adopt the agenda as amended. Adding 
November 18 as next regular meeting. 


Carried 
 
 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to adopt the minutes of the 2021.10.14 Council 
Meeting as presented. 


Carried 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Each member took the Oath and signed the form. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CAO Kinahan invited Councillors to propose Nominations for Mayor. 
Councillor Allred was nominated by Councillor Law. 
 
CAO Kinahan made a second call for Nominations for Mayor. 
Councillor Peterson was nominated by Councillor Allred. 
 
CAO Kinahan made a third call for Nominations for Mayor. 
Councillor Allred was nominated by Councillor Peterson.  
 
Councillor Allred was Appointed as Mayor. 
 
CAO Kinahan invited Councillors to propose Nominations for Deputy 
Mayor. 
Councillor Holthe was nominated Councillor Peterson.  
 
CAO Kinahan made a second call for Nominations for Deputy Mayor. 
Councillor Holthe was nominated by Councillor Law. 
 
CAO Kinahan made a third call for Nominations for Deputy Mayor. 
Councillor Peterson was nominated by Mayor Allred. 
 
Councillor Holthe was appointed as Deputy Mayor. 
 







 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes November 1, 2021 Initials: Page 2 of 2 
 


9. Mayor Allred:  Took 
over as Chair of 
meeting  
 
10. Appointments: 
10a) Council 
Appointments 
2021.11.168 
 
 
10b) Auditor  
2021.11.169 
 
 
10c) Assessor  
2021.11.170 
 
 
10d) Bank: ATB 
2021.11.171 
 
 
10e) Village Office 
Location 
2021.11.172 
 
10f) Village Council 
Meeting Location 
2021.11.173 
 
 
10g) Signing Authority  
2021.11.174 
 
 
11. Regular Council 
Meetings: Second 
Thursday of each 
month. 
2021.11.175 
 
 
 
2021.11.176 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
2021.11.177 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Peterson MOVED to confirm the following appointments 
to the various Village of Glenwood committees for the next year. 
Attached copy at bottom of minutes. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to appoint Mercer Wilde Group as the 
Village of Glenwood Auditor for the next year.  


Carried 
 
Mayor Allred MOVED to appoint Benchmark as the Village of 
Glenwood Assessor for the next year.  


Carried 
 
Mayor Allred MOVED to appoint ATB as the Village of Glenwood Bank 
for the next year.  


Carried 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to 59 Main Avenue as the Village of 
Glenwood main Office for the next year.  


Carried 
 
 
Mayor Allred MOVED to hold Village of Glenwood Council meetings at 
the Village Community Hall 90 Main Ave.  


Carried 
 
Councillor Peterson MOVED to appoint Mayor, Deputy Mayor, 
Councillors and CAO signing authorities. Removing previous 
Councillors. 


Carried 
 


 
Mayor Allred MOVED to approve the meeting dates as listed:           
Jan. 13, Feb. 10, Mar 10, Apr. 14, May 12, June 09, July 14, Aug. 11, 
Sept. 08, Oct. 13, Nov. 10, Dec. 08, 2022 


 
Carried 


Councillor Lybbert MOVED to hold a budget planning 
discussion/training on Nov. 5 at the Village office, Council Chambers.  


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 8:18pm 


Carried 
 
 


 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Meeting Chair 


 
_____________________________________________ 


Chief Administrative Officer 
  


 








CATEGORY Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
% Change 


2017 ‐ 2021


% Change 


2020 ‐ 2021


Avg File +/‐ 


per Year


     Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 1 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


     Robbery 2 0 0 0 1 ‐50% N/A ‐0.2


     Sexual Assaults 3 3 3 2 3 0% 50% ‐0.1


     Other Sexual Offences 0 3 0 2 2 N/A 0% 0.3


     Assault 27 50 38 57 47 74% ‐18% 4.7


     Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 1 0 2 2 1 0% ‐50% 0.2


     Extortion 1 0 0 0 0 ‐100% N/A ‐0.2


     Criminal Harassment 4 2 3 2 6 50% 200% 0.4


     Uttering Threats 4 9 6 5 13 225% 160% 1.4


TOTAL PERSONS 42 67 53 70 73 74% 4% 6.5


     Break & Enter 9 13 6 5 9 0% 80% ‐0.8


     Theft of Motor Vehicle 9 2 5 4 5 ‐44% 25% ‐0.6


     Theft Over $5,000 2 1 1 3 0 ‐100% ‐100% ‐0.2


     Theft Under $5,000 53 37 22 32 39 ‐26% 22% ‐3.3


     Possn Stn Goods 6 3 1 5 5 ‐17% 0% 0.0


     Fraud 9 10 11 8 6 ‐33% ‐25% ‐0.8


     Arson 0 0 0 1 0 N/A ‐100% 0.1


     Mischief ‐ Damage To Property 0 0 12 9 16 N/A 78% 4.1


     Mischief ‐ Other 37 61 35 30 42 14% 40% ‐2.1


TOTAL PROPERTY 125 127 93 97 122 ‐2% 26% ‐3.6


     Offensive Weapons 2 11 5 7 8 300% 14% 0.8


     Disturbing the peace 46 54 64 43 44 ‐4% 2% ‐1.5


     Fail to Comply & Breaches 110 123 121 37 35 ‐68% ‐5% ‐23.6


     OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 14 12 13 16 11 ‐21% ‐31% ‐0.2


TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 172 200 203 103 98 ‐43% ‐5% ‐24.5


TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 339 394 349 270 293 ‐14% 9% ‐21.6


Cardston Provincial Detachment 
Crime Statistics (Actual)


Q2: 2017 ‐ 2021
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" October 6, 2021







CATEGORY Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
% Change 


2017 ‐ 2021


% Change 


2020 ‐ 2021


Avg File +/‐ 


per Year


     Drug Enforcement ‐ Production 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


     Drug Enforcement ‐ Possession 0 0 3 14 14 N/A 0% 4.2


     Drug Enforcement ‐ Trafficking 0 0 5 1 5 N/A 400% 1.1


     Drug Enforcement ‐ Other 0 0 1 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


Total Drugs 0 0 9 15 19 N/A 27% 5.3


     Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


     Federal ‐ General 5 7 2 5 3 ‐40% ‐40% ‐0.6


TOTAL FEDERAL 5 7 11 20 22 340% 10% 4.7


     Liquor Act 31 59 49 63 38 23% ‐40% 1.8


     Cannabis Act 0 0 1 1 0 N/A ‐100% 0.1


     Mental Health Act 12 17 17 22 13 8% ‐41% 0.7


     Other Provincial Stats 25 38 34 22 28 12% 27% ‐1.0


Total Provincial Stats 68 114 101 108 79 16% ‐27% 1.6


     Municipal By‐laws Traffic 1 0 0 0 0 ‐100% N/A ‐0.2


     Municipal By‐laws 4 11 9 6 13 225% 117% 1.3


Total Municipal 5 11 9 6 13 160% 117% 1.1


     Fatals 0 0 1 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


     Injury MVC 3 1 1 1 5 67% 400% 0.4


     Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 50 47 33 35 31 ‐38% ‐11% ‐5.0


     Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 6 3 4 5 5 ‐17% 0% 0.0


TOTAL MVC 59 51 39 41 41 ‐31% 0% ‐4.6


     Roadside Suspension ‐ Alcohol (Prov) 0 0 0 0 4 N/A N/A 0.8


     Roadside Suspension ‐ Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 3 N/A N/A 0.6


Total Provincial Traffic 115 170 109 225 213 85% ‐5% 25.1


Other Traffic 1 2 11 8 0 ‐100% ‐100% 0.4


Criminal Code Traffic 18 9 23 38 11 ‐39% ‐71% 1.5


Common Police Activities


     False Alarms 29 20 11 10 8 ‐72% ‐20% ‐5.2


     False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 24 20 22 17 12 ‐50% ‐29% ‐2.7


     Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 31 41 30 29 28 ‐10% ‐3% ‐1.8


     Persons Reported Missing 4 8 7 5 10 150% 100% 0.9


     Search Warrants 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


     Spousal Abuse ‐ Survey Code (Reported) 30 17 23 23 24 ‐20% 4% ‐0.6


     Form 10 (MHA) (Reported) 0 0 1 0 1 N/A N/A 0.2


Cardston Provincial Detachment 
Crime Statistics (Actual)


Q2: 2017 ‐ 2021
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" October 6, 2021








Please wait... 
  
If this message is not eventually replaced by the proper contents of the document, your PDF 
viewer may not be able to display this type of document. 
  
You can upgrade to the latest version of Adobe Reader for Windows®, Mac, or Linux® by 
visiting  http://www.adobe.com/go/reader_download. 
  
For more assistance with Adobe Reader visit  http://www.adobe.com/go/acrreader. 
  
Windows is either a registered trademark or a trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. Mac is a trademark 
of Apple Inc., registered in the United States and other countries. Linux is the registered trademark of Linus Torvalds in the U.S. and other 
countries.





.\canada_blk.jpg

Symbol of the Government of Canada

Page  of 

Gurung, Pratiksha

11.0.1.20140715.1.911166

RCMP

Provincial Policing Report 

Detachment 

Detachment Commander

Quarter

Date of Report

Community Consultations

Date

Attendee(s)

Notes

Community Priorities

Crime Statistics1

The following table provides policing statistics on actual offences within the periods listed. Please see Appendix

for additional information and a five-year comparison.

July - September

January - December

Category

2020

2021

% Change Year-over-Year

2019

2020

% Change Year-over-Year

Total Criminal Code

Persons Crime

Property Crime

Other Criminal Code

Traffic Offences

Criminal Code Traffic

Provincial Code Traffic

Other Traffic

CDSA Offences

Other Federal Acts

Other Provincial Acts

Municipal By-Laws

Motor Vehicle Collisions

 1 Data extracted from a live database (PROS) and is subject to change over time.

Trends/Points of Interest

Provincial Police Service Composition2

Staffing Category

Established Positions

Working

Soft Vacancies3

Hard Vacancies4

Police Officers

Detachment Support

 2 Data extracted on September 30th, 2021 and is subject to change over time.  3 Soft Vacancies are positions that are filled but vacant due to maternity/paternity leave, medical leave, etc. and are still included in the overall FTE count.  4 Hard Vacancies reflect positions that do not have an employee attached and need to be filled.

Comments

Quarterly Financial Drivers

Priority 1

Priority 2

Priority 3

		CurrentPage: 

		PageCount: 

		Cell2: Cardston Provincial

		Cell2: Sgt R Wright

		Cell2: Q2 2021

		Cell2: 2021-10-19

		Cell2: Traffic Safety - Dangerous, Distracted and Impaired driving

		Cell2: Crime Reduction - Property Crime / Drug Offenses 

		Cell2: Community Engagement / Police visibility 

		Cell2: 270

		Cell2: 70

		Cell2: 97

		Cell2: 103

		Cell2: 38

		Cell2: 225

		Cell2: 8

		Cell2: 15

		Cell2: 20

		Cell2: 108

		Cell2: 6

		Cell2: 41

		Cell2: 9

		Cell2: 2

		Cell1: 

		Cell3: 293

		Cell3: 73

		Cell3: 122

		Cell3: 98

		Cell3: 11

		Cell3: 213

		Cell3: 0

		Cell3: 19

		Cell3: 22

		Cell3: 79

		Cell3: 13

		Cell3: 41

		Cell3: 9

		Cell3: 2

		Delete: 

		Add: 

		Cell4: Police issued 116 traffic violations this past Quarter along with 10 impaired driving charges. That puts the total for the year at just over 300 traffic violations with a goal of 250/yr and 31 Impaired Driving charges with a goal of 40 per year. Police also continue to complete rural traffic operations which will continue with partner agencies such as the Alberta Sheriffs and Fish and Wildlife. All priority initiatives are on track and expected to exceed the current targets.

		Cell4: Drug trafficking charges continue to raise in response to the Crime Reduction initiative which specifically targets those in possession of or trafficking controlled substances. Cardston RCMP have put 24 charges before the courts this quarter largely for Methamphetamine and Fentanyl. RCMP recently seized 200 plus grams of Meth and Fentanyl from a local hotel and in August  / September charged several individuals for trafficking at an apartment complex. RCMP also continue to focus on prolific offenders charging 48 people with breaching their court orders as it relates to release conditions. The RCMP does not dictate who should be released from custody, when and under which conditions; this is for the courts to decide. We do however hold people accountable to those conditions and bring them back before the courts when they are found in breach. All communities benefit from the crime reduction initiatives in that our prolific offenders and drug use are closely tied with rural crime and property crime.

		Cell4: Police continue to be active in all communities in varying degrees. All schools within the county have had their SAFE plans updated with officers attending all schools and participating in lock down practices where invited to do so. Police have joined in on school fun runs and parades over the summer and during the first part of the school year. Media releases continue to be completed twice a month through the Temple City Star for significant files of interest and general information. Police completed 134 rural area patrols in Q2 up slightly from Q1; it is suspected the year end tally will be slightly over 500 for the year which is much higher then the purposed target. Again this works well with reducing rural crime and traffic safety initiatives. RCMP will also be looking for the opportunity to hold a virtual Town Hall in light of current health restrictions after having to cancel an in person event that was set for October 20th. Two weeks notice will be given to all communities within the jurisdiction once a new date is set.

		Cell4: 9%

		Cell4: 4%

		Cell4: 26%

		Cell4: -5%

		Cell4: -71%

		Cell4: -5%

		Cell4: -100%

		Cell4: 27%

		Cell4: 10%

		Cell4: -27%

		Cell4: 117%

		Cell4: 0%

		Cell4: 0

		Cell4: 0

		Cell5: 1,280

		Cell5: 225

		Cell5: 380

		Cell5: 675

		Cell5: 87

		Cell5: 580

		Cell5: 52

		Cell5: 31

		Cell5: 38

		Cell5: 352

		Cell5: 30

		Cell5: 185

		Cell5: 0

		Cell5: 0

		Cell6: 1,026

		Cell6: 279

		Cell6: 361

		Cell6: 386

		Cell6: 85

		Cell6: 636

		Cell6: 18

		Cell6: 57

		Cell6: 71

		Cell6: 376

		Cell6: 24

		Cell6: 145

		Cell7: -20%

		Cell7: 24%

		Cell7: -5%

		Cell7: -43%

		Cell7: -2%

		Cell7: 10%

		Cell7: -65%

		Cell7: 84%

		Cell7: 87%

		Cell7: 7%

		Cell7: -20%

		Cell7: -22%

		TextField1: The Cardston RCMP responded to 788 calls for service over the summer months up slightly from 770 in Q1 with a projected total of just over 3000 files for this year which is also up slightly from 2020/21 which saw Police respond to 2870 calls for service.Priority issues that make up a portion of the (Annual Performance Plan) are expected to rise in the number of occurrences per year CDSA offenses (Drugs). Impaired driving offenses which were typically seen in Criminal Courts only are now Provincial as of this year (subject to the accused qualifying to enter into the program). The numbers for Criminal Vs Provincial Traffic offenses may take some time to shake out as a resultCrimes against persons (Assaults & other) took a significant jump with approximately 55 more occurrences happening in 2020 then in 2019 however only up 3 occurrences on the quarter. 2019 brought in some of the first lock downs which have also distorted numbers. It is suspected the number will be more consistent with 260-300 allegations or investigations per year.

		TextField1: Police Officers – The 9 established positions are currently filled. Detachment Support – The 2 established support positions are currently filled.Cardston Detachment does anticipate a transfer cycle next summer which will see one or two members transfer out of the area which is part of normal career development. All positions will be filled by transfers coming into the area. Exact time lines will not be available until closer to the day however core operations and service delivery will remain unaffected.

		TextField1: The Detachment continues to operate at or below the operational budget with Finances not affecting core operations or service delivery.










 


 
 


 


 


 


2021/10/19 


Sgt Robert Wright 
Detachment Commander NCO i/c 
Cardston Alberta 
 
Mayor / Reeve and Counsel, 
 
 


The Alberta RCMP remains committed to strengthening partnerships with the communities it 
serves. In light of municipal elections that took place on October 18th in communities across 
Alberta, I offer my sincerest congratulations to you and your elected council.  Whether or not 
there are new faces within your executive council, my commitment to you and your team 
remains unwavering.   As the Chief of Police for your community, please reach out to me 
directly if you require anything to bring your team up to speed.  
 
Please find attached the quarterly Community Policing Report that covers the July 1st to 
September 30th, 2021 reporting period. The attached report serves to provide a quarterly 
snapshot of the human resources, financial data and crime statistics for the Cardston 
Detachment.  As part of maintaining engagement with the Albertans we serve, this quarterly 
report reinforces our commitment to communicate the work we do to ensure community 
safety. This reporting along with your valued feedback will allow us to assess and enhance our 
policing service to ensure we are meeting your needs on an ongoing basis.   
 
In addition to sharing quarterly updates on community-identified policing priorities through this 
reporting, I remain available to discuss business and program planning processes to further 
optimize our services to address the priorities that are important to you.   
 


Congratulations once again, and please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or 
concerns.  
 
Bob Wright  
NCO i/c 
Cardston, AB 








1 
AV


E 
W


M
AI


N
 A


VE


1 ST N


CENTRE ST


500 Metres 150100 200


OLDMAN  RIVER  REGIONAL  SERVICES COMMISSION


PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE
SCHEDULE 'A'


PLAN 1222AY
ALL THAT PORTION OF UNNAMED STREET LYING 


BETWEEN BLOCK 21 & 22 AND FORMING A PART OF SUBDIVISION PLAN ________
CONTAINING 0.186 HECTARES (0.46 ACRES) MORE OR LESS
WITHIN SW 1/4 SEC 12, TWP 5, RGE 27, W 4 M
MUNICIPALITY: VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
DATE: SEPTEMBER 2, 2021


MAP PREPARED BY:
OLDMAN R IVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION


3105 16th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA   T1H 5E8
TEL. 403-329-1344


"NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ERRORS OR OMISSIONS"


Bylaw #:                              
Date:                                   


Aerial Photo Date: April 19, 2017



AutoCAD SHX Text

20



AutoCAD SHX Text

17



AutoCAD SHX Text

29



AutoCAD SHX Text

28



AutoCAD SHX Text

30



AutoCAD SHX Text

16



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

22



AutoCAD SHX Text

23



AutoCAD SHX Text

21



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

13



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

1222AY



AutoCAD SHX Text

1213188



AutoCAD SHX Text

0310681



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

21



AutoCAD SHX Text

1222AY



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8910216



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

29



AutoCAD SHX Text

1311316



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.27





		Sheets and Views

		LUD REDESIGNATION 1-2500

















Village of Glenwood Administration and Council     November 14, 2021 
PO Box 1084 
Glenwood, Alberta T0K 2R0 
Office@glenwood.ca 
 
RE: Process of Development Proposal of Block 22, Lots 1, 2 & 3 
 
I personal welcome such a multi home development in the Village, and with that I propose that the 
owner of this land, Wayne & Sondra Smith, the guide of Doug Pitcher and Developer from Calgary . . .  
simple move the development to Block 4, which is also owned by the same people.  More dirt to deal 
with and all current challenges would just “go away”.  No ‘bunker’ wall needed either. 
 
The proper protocols of proceeding any subdivision in a Municipality have not been adhered to by our 
Administration of the Village in numerous ways.  No need for a list here.  Recently, I had to draw a line 
with the mere thought of a giveaway or potential consideration of selling any portion or section of road.   
 
It’s become apparent that no one in our Administration or Council understand that we cannot sell 
something that does not belong to us.  This is simply put.  We don’t OWN the roads.  I am positive that 
Oldman River Regional Services Commission, and through the guidance of their excellent staff, would 
guide us back on track to do things in the order and proper protocol in which are necessary to keep us 
safe. 
 
As to the easterly portion of Block 22 where a laneway road lay between Blocks 22 & 21, it would be 
most astute of the Village to freshly survey this road, identify the proper lot lines and laneway, in 
consideration of the future tense of the Village.  Meaning, it is appropriate, useful, and to all of our 
benefits in the Village to have back door access of commercial buildings on Main Avenue.  Delivery 
trucks and other uses of this ‘laneway’ would take all truck traffic OFF of Main Avenue completely; as it 
should be. 
 
It is my hope that consideration begin to come into being that the “rules” of how to do something 
formally in a Municipality are to be adhered to all of the time.  We don’t just get to make it up as we go 
along, and frankly, freedom is found in being a rule follower.  Everyone is kept safe and we don’t lay the 
Municipality, its Council or Administration vulnerable to formal push back that may invite trouble in the 
future. 
 
I humbly suggest that this development being moved to Block 4, and with astute design of buildings, 
window placement, it would offer the future owners a beautiful westerly view of the mountains and 
frankly in all directions because of the height of this land by comparison to the inner core of the Village. 
 
Thanks to Wayne and Sondra Smith for their investment into the Village in this way; I for one appreciate 
your efforts. 
 
Kindest regards, 
 
Brenda MacMillan 
PS.  Wayne ?  Please consider donating/gifting some or a portion of the Block 22 property to the Village 
which would enable us to build a Central Green Space for the Village. 
c.c. Wayne Smith & Doug Pitcher 



mailto:Office@glenwood.ca





 
 
 
 
 








 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 1 of 17 


Draft AGREEMENT FOR REGIONAL ASSESSMENT REVIEW SERVICES 


Between 


Oldman River Regional Services Commission 
(“Coordinator”) 


- and - 


Village of Glenwood 
(“Member Municipality”) 


 


Dated this  ______ day of _________________, ______ 
 
 
BACKGROUND 


A. Oldman River Regional Services Commission is the Coordinator for property assessment complaints 
for the residents of the Member Municipalities identified in Schedule “A”;  


B. The Member Municipalities wish to partner together to create one Regional Assessment Review Board.  


C. The Member Municipality is willing to join the Oldman River Regional Services Commission Region‘s 
Regional Assessment Review Services membership.  


The Parties agree as follows:  


1. AGREEMENT  


1.1  The following schedules form part of this agreement:  
Schedule “A” – List of Member Municipalities  
Schedule “B” – Bylaw  
Schedule “C” – Responsibilities 
Schedule “D” – Fees  


2.  DEFINITIONS  


2.1  In this Agreement, unless the context provides otherwise, the following words or phrases shall have 
 the following meanings: 


a. “Assessor” is the person appointed by the Member Municipality to assess residents’ property.  


b. “Assistant Clerk” is a staff person employed by a Member Municipality to provide service to 
the Complainant;  


c. “CARB” is Composite Assessment Review Board as defined by the Matters Relating to 
Assessment Complaints Regulation;  







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 2 of 17 


d. “Clerk” is the Chief Administrative Officer of Oldman River Regional Services Commission 
appointed by the Regional Member Municipality to act as the Clerk to the Regional Assessment 
Review Board;  


e. “Complainant” is an assessed person or taxpayer;  


f. “Coordinator” is Oldman River Regional Services Commission;  


g. “LARB” is Local Assessment Review Board as defined by the Municipal Government Act;  


h. “Member Municipality” is a municipality listed in Schedule “A”; 


i. “Regional Assessment Review Board” means the Board appointed to hear appeals on tax and 
assessment notices established in accordance with section 454 of the Municipal Government 
Act.  


3.  MEMBER MUNICIPALITY RESPONSIBILITIES  


3.1  The Member Municipality shall be entitled to participate in the Regional Assessment Review Board 
 once it passes a Bylaw in the form attached as Schedule “B”.  


3.2 The Member Municipality may select and appoint one Citizen-at-large to be a Board Member and 
one Council member to be available to sit on a panel for the Regional Assessment Review Board. 


a. If a vacancy on the Board occurs at any time, the Member Municipality who appointed the 
individual may appoint a new individual to fill the vacancy for the remainder of that term.  
 


b. Any costs incurred to advertise and select a Board Member are the responsibility of the Member 
Municipality.  


3.3 Each Member Municipality will pay an equal portion of costs to train Board members, procure 
insurance and provide any other general costs to establish and maintain the Regional Assessment 
Review Board.  This will include legal services if they are required for general purposes to facilitate 
the administration of the Board (i.e., procedural questions).  


3.4 The Member Municipality requiring a Hearing will pay all costs related to the Hearing, i.e., Board 
Member & Clerk honorarium, mileage.  If there are multiple Hearings held involving more than 
one Member Municipality, each municipality will pay their portion of costs based on number of 
Hearings.  If legal services are required for issues that relate only to a specific complaint, the cost 
of the service will be payable by the Member Municipality which has jurisdiction over the appeal. 


3.5 The Coordinator will be responsible to pay all costs related to the Regional Assessment Review 
Board and invoice each Member Municipality as per clauses 3.3/3.4.  The Coordinator will charge 
administration or staff fees for the services provided to operate the Board as prescribed in 
Schedule “D” - Fees.  


3.6 Oldman River Regional Services Commission will invoice Member Municipalities based on actual 
costs to operate the Board.  All invoices are payable within 30 days upon receipt of invoice. 


 







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 3 of 17 


4. COORDINATOR RESPONSIBILITIES 


4.1 The Coordinator will coordinate services for the Member Municipality as identified in 
Schedule “C” and may assign any responsibilities to the Clerk as deemed necessary. 


4.2 The Coordinator will, at the request of the Member Municipality, assist during negotiations 
between the Assessor and the Complainant.  


4.3 The Coordinator is responsible for ensuring the Regional Assessment Review Board members 
receive training in accordance with the MGA and regulations.  


4.4 The Coordinator is responsible to assign a panel of Committee Members (in consultation with the 
affected Municipality) to the CARB, LARB or one member Board for administrative items as 
described in the MGA.  


4.5 The Coordinator will follow Oldman River Regional Services Commission’s current remuneration 
policy for Board Members and Oldman River Regional Services Commission assessment appeal 
fee schedule “D”. 


4.6 The Coordinator will keep a record of the complaint in accordance with the MGA and regulations.  


4.7 The Coordinator will retain paper records such as background information, correspondence, appeal 
notices and withdrawn appeals for ten (10) years upon receipt of such paper records.  However, 
agendas and minutes are permanent records. 


4.8 The Coordinator will maintain liability insurance for the Board, obtain legal services when required 
and ensure the affected Member Municipality is informed.  


5. ASSISTANT CLERK RESPONSIBILITIES  


5.1  The Assistant Clerk will, when required, administer withdrawn appeals in accordance with the 
 Member Municipality’s practice. 


5.2 The Assistant Clerk will, upon receiving an appeal, review the documents for validity and 
compliance with the MGA and regulations. 


5.3 The Assistant Clerk will forward a copy of all the appeal documents to the Regional Clerk, and 
advise regarding hearing location preferences.  


5.4 Any other responsibilities as identified in Schedule “C”.  


6.  TERM  
 
6.1 The term of this Agreement shall be deemed as indefinite, provided, however, this Contract may 


be terminated as follows: 
 


(a) By mutual consent, in which case, this Agreement will be terminated effective the date of the 
mutual consent and the Commission will be entitled to payment of fees, on a pro rata basis, 
to the effective date of termination. 







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 4 of 17 


(b) For cause, by delivery of a written notice of termination specifying the cause in which case 
the termination shall be immediate; "cause" being defined as any persistent or material 
breach by either party in its performance or observance of the terms of this Agreement. 


 
(c) Without cause or mutual consent, by delivery of a THREE (3) month notice of termination 


by either party, in which case the Commission will be entitled to payment of fees and 
expenses, on a pro rata basis, to the effective date of the termination. 


7. PRIVACY  


7.1 The Coordinator is subject to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (FOIP) 
and will protect the confidential information provided from unauthorized access or disclosure.  


7.2 The Member Municipalities shall ensure that any information of a confidential nature which it 
provides to the Coordinator is clearly marked as such.  


8.  INFORMATION SHARING  


8.1 Member Municipalities will make every reasonable effort to ensure information will be or is 
intended to be used to make a decision in an assessment review is both complete and accurate.  


8.2  In order to process reviews for a property tax or assessment notice, the Coordinator is authorized 
 to collect the following types of personal information:  


a. Roll Number  
b. Legal Address  
c. Civic Address  
d. Registered Owner Name(s)  
e. Registered Owner(s) mailing address and phone number  
f. Assessed Value and Assessment Class of the property under review  
g. Name, address and phone number of Registered Agent for the Owner  


8.3  Personal information will be collected from the Member Municipality or ratepayer as per the FOIP 
 Act.  


9.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION  


9.1  All claims, disputes, and other matters arising out of this Agreement or relating to a breach 
 thereof may, upon agreement of both parties, be referred to either:  


a. Mediation – voluntary, no risk, non-binding process bringing the parties to a resolution. The 
mediator will be appointed upon the agreement of both parties; or 


 
b. Arbitration – upon the agreement of both parties, be referred to a single arbitrator under the 


Arbitration Act, and if so referred, the decision of the arbitrator shall be final, conclusive and 
binding upon the parties.  If the parties are not able to agree on an arbitrator, the Alberta Court 
of Queen’s Bench shall select one.  All costs associated with the appointment of the arbitrator 
shall be shared equally unless the arbitrator determines otherwise in accordance with the 
Arbitration Act of Alberta.  


 







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 5 of 17 


10.  INDEMNIFICATION  


10.1 The Member Municipality agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold 
harmless the Oldman River Regional Services Commission, its Board, Executive, Chief 
Administrative Officer and Employees against all damages, liabilities or costs arising out of the 
property assessment or disputes related to the property assessment.  


10.2 The Member Municipality is solely responsible for the property assessments and compliance with 
the outcome of the disputed property assessments.  


10.3 In the furnishing of any services by the Coordinator, the Coordinator shall not assume any 
responsibility, obligations or duties in respect to the services.  


11.  INSURANCE  


11.1  The Coordinator through the Jubilee Insurance Program will arrange for comprehensive general 
 liability insurance and directors and officers liability insurance to cover the Board and the members.  


12.  NOTICES  


12.1  Any notices or other correspondence required to be given to any party to this agreement shall be 
 deemed to be adequately given if delivered to the Member Municipality address as provided in 
 Schedule “A”.  


13.  FORCE MAJEURE  


13.1 Each party reserves the right, at its option, either to suspend or cancel this Agreement, in whole or 
in part, at any time, without incurring any costs or damages whatsoever, where such suspension or 
cancellation is caused by force majeure, including, but not limited to, acts of God, the public enemy 
of the government, strikes or other labour disputes, fires, floods, freight embargoes, unusually 
severe weather or other contingencies beyond the control of either party.  


14.  SINGULAR AND MASCULINE 


14.1 Words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa and words 
importing one gender only in this Agreement shall include all genders and words importing parties 
or persons in this Agreement shall include individuals, partnerships, corporations, and other 
entities, legal or otherwise.  


15.  GOVERNING LAW 


15.1 This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made in accordance with the laws of the Province 
of Alberta except the International Sale of Goods Act, which is specifically excluded.  The Courts 
of Alberta shall have sole and exclusive jurisdiction over any dispute or lawsuit between the parties.  


16. INTERPRETATION  


16.1 The headings in the Agreement are for ease of reference only and shall not affect the meaning or 
the interpretation of this Agreement.  







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 6 of 17 


17.  SUCCESSORS  


17.1 This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties and, except as herein 
before provided, the successors and assigns thereof.  


18.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT  


18.1 This Agreement is the whole agreement between the parties and may not be modified, changed, 
amended or waived except by signed written agreement of the parties.  


19.  COUNTERPART  


19.1 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts by the parties.  All counterparts 
so executed shall have the same effect as if all parties actually had joined in executing one and the 
same document.  


 
 
The parties to this Agreement have affixed their corporate seals signed by the hands of their proper officers. 
In the absence of a corporate seal, the “Affidavit Verifying Corporate Signing Authority” and the “Affidavit 
of Execution” attached shall be completed in full. 
 
 
 OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION 
 
 
 PER: _______________________________________________ 
 
 
 PER: _______________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 “MUNICIPALITY” 
 
 
 PER: _______________________________________________ 
 
 
 PER: _______________________________________________ 
 
  







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 7 of 17 


Schedule “A” 
Member Municipalities 


As of June 1, 2021: Arrowwood – Village 
Barnwell – Village 
Barons – Village 
Cardston – County 
Cardston – Town 
Carmangay – Village 
Champion – Village 
Claresholm – Town 
Coaldale – Town 
Coalhurst – Town 
Coutts – Village 
Crowsnest Pass – Municipality 
Fort Macleod – Town 
Glenwood – Village 
Hill Spring – Village 
Lethbridge – County 
Lomond – Village 
Magrath – Town 
Milk River – Town 
Milo – Village 
Nanton -–Town 
Nobleford – Village 
Picture Butte – Town 
Pincher Creek – Municipal District 
Pincher Creek – Town 
Raymond – Town 
Stavely – Town 
Stirling – Village 
Taber – Municipal District 
Vauxhall – Town 
Vulcan – County 
Vulcan – Town 
Warner – County 
Willow Creek – Municipal District  







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 8 of 17 


Schedule “B” 
 


“VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD” 
BYLAW # 133-2021 


 
A bylaw of the “Municipality” in the Province of Alberta to establish a Regional Assessment Review Board.  
 
WHEREAS, section 454 of the Municipal Government Act, states that council must by bylaw establish a 
local assessment review board and a composite assessment review board; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 454.1(1) of the Municipal Government Act, states that council must appoint at least 
3 persons as members of the local assessment review board; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 454.2(1) of the Municipal Government Act, states that council must appoint at least 
2 persons as members of the composite assessment review board; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 455(1) of the Municipal Government Act, states that two or more councils may agree 
to jointly establish the local assessment review board or the composite review board, or both, to have 
jurisdiction in their municipalities; and 
 
WHEREAS, Oldman River Regional Services Commission (Commission) and Municipalities within the 
region, jointly wish to establish a Regional Assessment Review Board to exercise the functions of a Local 
Assessment Review Board (LARB) and the functions of a Composite Assessment Review Board (CARB) 
under the provisions of the Municipal Government Act in respect of assessment complaints made by an 
assessed person or taxpayer of a Regional Member Municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, Oldman River Regional Services Commission will pay for the costs associated with the 
establishment and operations of the required Assessment Review Board(s) and will invoice the Municipality 
their portion of the costs. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the “Municipality”, duly assembled, enacts as follows:  
 
1. Title  


 
1.1 The title of this Bylaw shall be the “Regional Assessment Review Board Bylaw Amendment 2021”.  


 
2. Definitions  


 
2.1  Except as otherwise provided herein, words in this Bylaw shall have the meanings prescribed in 


section 453 of the MGA.  
 


2.2 In this bylaw the following terms shall have the meanings shown:  
 
a. Alternate means a person who is available to perform the duties of a member in the event 


the member is unable to fulfil Board duties.  
b. Board means the Regional Assessment Review Board. 
c. CARB means the Composite Assessment Review Board established in accordance with 


the ‘Matters Relating to Assessment Complaints’ regulation.  
d. Clerk means the person appointed to carry out the duties and functions of the assessment 


review board as required under section 456 of the Municipal Government Act.  







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 9 of 17 


e. Citizen-at-large means a person who does not represent a specific organization and is 
appointed by Council.  


f. LARB means the Local Assessment Review Board established in accordance with the 
‘Matters Relating to Assessment Complaints’ regulation.  


g. Member means a member of the Regional Assessment Review Board.  
h. MGA means the Municipal Government Act of Alberta, RSA 2000, Ch. M-26, as amended 


and Regulations passed under that Act.  
i. Regional Member Municipality means those municipalities who enter into an agreement 


with the Commission to jointly establish a Regional Assessment Review Board and who 
enact a bylaw substantially in the form of this bylaw.  


 
3. Appointment of Board Members  
 
3.1 Each Member Municipality may appoint one individual to the Board and may appoint an individual 


as an alternate to the Board.  
 


3.2 The Board shall consist of a minimum of twenty members, some of whom may be a Citizen-at-
large or a Council member.  
 


3.3 In addition, when sitting as the CARB, the Board shall include the provincial member appointed 
by the Minister.  


 
4.  Terms of Appointment  


 
4.1 Unless otherwise stated, all Members are appointed for three-year terms, except in the initial year 


where up to three are appointed for three-year terms and up to four are appointed for two-year 
terms.  
 


4.2 If a vacancy on the Board occurs the Member Municipality who made the appointment may appoint 
a new person to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term.  
 


4.3 A Member may be re-appointed to the Board at the expiration of his/her term, provided 
recertification training has occurred prior to the expiration of term.  
 


4.4 A Member may resign from the Board at any time on written notice to the Clerk and to the Member 
Municipality to that effect.  
 


4.5 The Member Municipality may remove their designated Member at any time.  
 


5. Panels of the Board  
 


5.1 The Board shall sit in panels to hear assessment complaints as the nature of the complaint may 
permit or require, such panels are to consist of:  
 
a. three persons selected by the Clerk when the Board is acting as a Local Assessment Review 


Board;  
b. two persons selected by the Clerk when the Board is acting as a Composite Assessment Review 


Board; or 
c. a single member selected by the Clerk when the Board is acting as a Single Member Composite 


Assessment Review Board or a Single Member Individual Local Assessment Review Board.  
 







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 10 of 17 


5.2 The Clerk may select any member to sit on a panel and shall designate the Chairperson for each 
panel, provided however that:  
 
a. the provincial member must be the Chairperson of a panel sitting as the Composite Assessment 


Review Board; and  
 


b. the provincial member must be the sole member of a panel sitting as a Single Member 
Composite Assessment Review Board;  


 
c. where possible, the Clerk shall include on a three-person panel a member who is from the 


municipality under whose jurisdiction the complaint arises.  
 


6. Chairperson  
 
6.1 The Chairperson of a panel:  


 
a. will preside over and be responsible for the conduct of meetings;  


 
b. may limit a submission if it is determined to be repetitious or in any manner inappropriate; 


and  
 


c. will vote on matters submitted to the panel unless otherwise disqualified.  
 


7. Jurisdiction of the Board  
 


7.1 The Board shall have jurisdiction to exercise the functions of a Local Assessment Review Board 
(LARB) and the functions of a Composite Assessment Review Board (CARB) under the provisions 
of the Municipal Government Act in respect of assessment complaints made by taxpayers of a 
Regional Member Municipality.  
 


8. Clerk(s) of the Board  
 


8.1 The Clerk(s) of the Board shall be a person designated by the Oldman River Regional Services 
Commission’s Chief Administrative Officer. 
 


8.2 The Clerk shall:  
 
a. assist the Board in fulfilling its mandate; and  


 
b. prescribe the remuneration and expenses payable to each member of the Assessment Review 


Board.  
 


9. Meetings  
 


9.1 Meetings will be held at such time and place as determined by the Board.  
 


9.2 The proceedings and deliberations of the Board must be conducted in public except where the 
Board deals with information protected from disclosure under the provisions of the Freedom of 
Information and Protection of Privacy Act.  


 
 







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 11 of 17 


 
10. Quorum and Voting  


 
10.1 The quorum for panels of the Board shall be as established by the MGA, namely:  


 
a. two members of a panel acting as a local assessment review board; and  


 
b. one member and the provincial member of a panel acting as a composite assessment review 


board.  
 


10.2 All members must vote on all matters before the Board unless a pecuniary interest or a conflict of 
interest is declared.  
 


10.3 The majority vote of those Members present and voting constitutes the decision of the Board.  
 


10.4 Where a member of a panel absents himself or herself from the proceedings due to a conflict of 
interest or a pecuniary interest, the Clerk shall appoint a replacement member of the panel.  
 


11. Conflict of Interest  
 


11.1 Where a member of the Board is of the opinion that he or she has a conflict of interest in respect of 
a matter before the Board, the member may absent himself or herself from Board proceedings while 
that matter is being discussed, provided that prior to leaving the meeting, the member:  
 
a. declares that he or she has a conflict of interest; and 


 
b. describes in general terms the nature of the conflict of interest.  
 


11.2 The Clerk shall cause a record to be made in the Minutes of the members’ absence and the reasons 
for it.  
 


11.3 For the purposes of this provision, a member has a conflict of interest in a respect of a matter before 
the Board when he or she is of the opinion that: 
 
a. he or she has a personal interest in the matter which would conflict with his or her obligation 


as a member to fairly consider the issue; or  
 


b. substantial doubt as to the ethical integrity of the member would be raised in the minds of a 
reasonable observer, if that member were to participate in the consideration of that matter.  


 
12. Pecuniary Interest  


 
12.1 The pecuniary interest provisions of the MGA apply to all members of the Board while attending 


meetings of the Board, as though they were councillors attending meetings of council.  
 


12.2 A Board member who fails to declare a pecuniary interest in a matter before the Board, or fails to 
absent himself or herself from proceedings dealing with such a matter, ceases to be a member of 
the Board.  


 
 
 







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 12 of 17 


13. Commencement of Appeals  
 


13.1 An assessed person or a taxpayer may commence an assessment complaint by:  
 
a. mailing or delivering to the address specified on the assessment or tax notice a complaint in 


the form set out in the ‘Matters Relating to Assessment Complaints’ regulation and within the 
time specified in the MGA; and  
 


b. paying the applicable fee.  
 


14. Rules of Order  
 


14.1 The Board shall make its own procedural rules, having due regard for the principles of procedural 
fairness.  
 


15. Adjournments  
 


15.1 The Board may in its discretion grant adjournments of a hearing for such purposes as it feels 
necessary to ensure proper consideration of the issues before it, including:  
 
a. allowing the Board to obtain a legal opinion or other professional guidance; or  


 
b. to allow a viewing by the Board of the site in respect of which the appeal is being made.  
 


15.2 Where the parties to an appeal consent to an adjournment of the hearing, such adjournment may be 
granted by the Chairperson after consultation with the Members individually (whether in person, 
by telephone or by e-mail) without the need to convene a formal meeting. In such a case, the Board 
is deemed to have convened and the hearing is deemed to have commenced as of the date of such 
consultation.  
 


16. Notice of Decisions & Record of Hearing  
 


16.1 After the hearing of a complaint, the Clerk shall:  
 
a. under direction of the Chairperson, prepare Minutes of the hearing, the decision or order of the 


Board and the reasons for the decision in compliance with the MGA; and  
 


b. arrange for the order or decision of the Board to be signed and distributed in accordance with 
the requirements under the MGA.  


 
16.2 The Clerk will maintain a record of the hearing.  


 
17. Delegation of Authority  


 
17.1 In accordance with its authority under MGA section 203(1) to delegate power, Council hereby 


delegates:  
a. its authority under the MGA to prescribe an appeal fee schedule and the remuneration and 


expenses payable to each member of the Regional Assessment Review Board and to the Clerk 
who will follow the Oldman River Regional Services Commission policy.  
 
 







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 13 of 17 


18. Reimbursement of Costs 
 


18.1 The Oldman River Regional Services Commission shall pay for the administrative costs associated 
with the operation of the Regional Assessment Review Board.  Recovery of costs from Regional 
Member Municipalities will be as set out in the agreements established.  


 
 
Read a First Time this ____ day of ________________, 2021.  
 
 
Read a Second Time this ____ day of _________________, 2021. 
 
 
Read a Third and Final Time this ____ day of _______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
           ________  
Mayor Linda Allred                          Chief Administrative Officer 
        Carrie Kinahan 
 
 
 
  







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 14 of 17 


Schedule “C” 
Responsibilities 


 
AC = Assistant Clerk from Member Municipality 


A = Assessor from Member Municipality 


C = Clerk for Regional Board (ORRSC or as designated by Chief Administrative Officer) 


 
 Receipt of Appeal 
AC • Collect fee 
AC • Review appeal for validity/compliance with legislation 
AC • Open file and send to Assessor & Clerk 


 
 Initial Stages 
A/AC • Preliminary discussions and disclosure of information occurs between 


Complainant and Assessor 
A/AC • Assessor advises Assistant Clerk if matter is resolved or proceeding to appeal 
 
AC 


• If resolved, Assistant Clerk advises Clerk and administers withdraw in 
accordance with local practice (refund fee MGA Sec, 481(2) 


AC • If proceeding, Assistant Clerk advises Clerk and forwards copy of all appeal 
documents 


AC • Assistant Clerk advises Regional Clerk of hearing location preference 


 
 Confirmation of Receipt of Appeal 
C • Review appeal for appeal type/validity/compliance with legislation 
C • Determine if issue exists for merit hearing 


 
 Assignment of Resources 
C • Open file/identify all parties involved 
C • Assign administrative support and Board members 
C • Establish hearing date, schedule facility, Board members 


 
 Send Notice of Hearing to Complainant 
C • Copies to Assistant Clerk, Assessor and Minister (if CARB) 
C • Copies if necessary to property owner, agent, lessee, etc… 


 
  







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 15 of 17 


 Disclosure 
AC/A • Complainant provides first disclosure to Assistant Clerk and Assessor 
AC • Assistant Clerk date stamps submission and forwards a copy to Clerk 
A • Assessor submits response to Assistant Clerk and Complainant 
AC • Assistant Clerk date stamps Assessor’s submission and forwards a copy to Clerk 
AC • Complainant provides rebuttal to Assistant Clerk and Assessor 
AC • Assistant Clerk date stamps submission and forwards a copy to Clerk 


 
 Agenda 
C • Clerk verifies all disclosures 
C • Clerk verifies attendance of all parties 
C • Clerk produces agenda packages and provides copies at the hearing for members 


and public 
C • Clerk liaises with Board and provides all material necessary – including 


legislation 
C • Clerk prepares templates for minutes and decisions of Board 


 
 Appeal Hearing 
C • Clerk attends hearing and produces minutes that identify all issues presented to 


Board 
C • Clerk attends deliberations and produces a decision from the Board that identifies 


all issues, arguments, reasons for the decision (including both conforming and 
dissenting reasons) 


 
 Send Notice to Complainant 
C • Copies to Assistant Clerk, Assessor and Minister (if CARB) 
C • Copies if necessary to property owner, agent, lessee, etc… 


 
 Reporting 
C • Clerk provides Assistant Clerk with a reporting package of the appeal which 


includes: 
C − Invoice for services in accordance with agreement 
C − Copy of hearing minutes 
C − Statistics (where necessary) 
C − Feedback form to establish best practices and service standards for quality 


control 
C − Clerk compiles and retains a record of the hearing in accordance with 


legislation and regulations 
 
  







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 16 of 17 


Schedule “D” 
Fees 


Regional Assessment Board Fee 
 
Annual Fee = $500, payable to Oldman River Regional Services Commission. 


Remuneration 
 
Board Members and Clerk shall receive honorariums for adjudicating at formally scheduled Hearings or 
taking appropriate training.  Honorariums shall be awarded on the following basis: 


 
MERIT Half day – Four (4) hour block $100.00 
 
MERIT Full day – Four plus (4+) hour block, excluding lunch hour $200.00 
 
LARB Half day – Four (4) hour block $100.00 
 
LARB Full day – Four plus (4+) hour block, excluding lunch hour $200.00 
 
CARB Half day – Four (4) hour block $200.00 
 
CARB Full day – Four plus (4+) hour block, excluding lunch hour $400.00 


 
Board Members and the Clerk shall receive compensation for travel based on the most current published 
Alberta Government Public Service Subsistence, Travel and Moving Expenses regulation for performing 
adjudication duties or taking appropriate training. 
 
Board Members and the Clerk shall receive reimbursement for meals incurred while performing 
adjudication duties or taking appropriate training.  A reasonable meal allowance will be offered and will 
most often be authorized and organized by the Clerk. 
 
Guidance to limitations can be derived from the most current published Alberta Government Public Service 
Subsistence, Travel and Moving Expenses regulation. 
 
Board Members and the Clerk shall receive reimbursement for any lodging accommodations required while 
performing adjudication duties or taking appropriate training. 
 
Provincial Members shall receive reimbursement for all expenses incurred and at the rates prescribed by 
the Province. 
  







 


Regional Assessment Review Services Agreement  Page 17 of 17 


Category of Complaint Fee 
 
Filing fees are determined and collected by Member Municipalities through either a Fees Bylaw or Fee 
Policy. 
 
In response to recent provincial legislation, the affected Municipality will refund assessment complaint fees 
when the board or (on appeal) the Court of Queen's Bench decides in favour of the complainant.  The fee 
will also be refunded if a complaint is withdrawn because agreement was reached with an assessor to correct 
the matter under complaint. 
 
Requesting an appeal fee is at the discretion of municipality. Schedule 2 of Matters Relating to 
Assessment Complaint Regulation, 2018, Complaint Fee indicates:   


 
 Complaint Fee 
Residential 3 or fewer dwellings and farmland  Up to $ 50 
Residential 4 or more dwellings  Up to $650 
Non-residential  Up to $650 
Business tax  Up to $ 50 
Tax notices (other than business tax)  Up to $ 30 
Linear property — power generation  Flat fee $650 per facility 
Linear property — other  Flat fee $ 50 per DIPAUID * 
Designated industrial property —  
 major plant or facility 


Flat fee $650 per major plant or facility 


Designated industrial property – other  Flat fee $50 per DIPAUID * 
Equalized assessment  Flat fee $650 


* Designated Industrial Property Assessment Unit Identification 





		Oldman River Regional Services Commission











 6:42:24PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2021-Nov-16Cheque Listing For Council


Page 1 of 2


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20210347 2021-10-11 Alberta Queen's Printer PAYMENT  183.75


E208533 QUEEN PRINTER MGA  183.75 


 20210348 2021-10-11 AMSC INSURANCE SERVICES LTD PAYMENT  965.37


0172-45,558 OCT BENEFITS  965.37 


 20210349 2021-10-11 CARTER, GERALD PAYMENT  71.98


2021.SEPT COUNCIL TRAVEL  71.98 


 20210350 2021-10-11 EDWARDS, DARRELL PAYMENT  50.00


SEPT 2021 MPC MEETING SEPT 28  50.00 


 20210351 2021-10-11 GOETZ, ASHLYN PAYMENT  495.23


Aug/Sept. Tips AUG / SEPT TIPS  495.23 


 20210352 2021-10-11 GOETZ, BEN PAYMENT  117.74


RECERTIFICATIONFIREWORKS RECERTIFICATION  117.74 


 20210353 2021-10-11 KINAHAN, CARRIE PAYMENT  330.61


2021AUG/SEPT PP SUP.,OFFICE,TRAVEL,SHOP GAS, SUPP 330.61 


 20210354 2021-10-11 KOCH , BRYNNE PAYMENT  140.14


AUG/SEPT TIPS AUG / SEPT TIPS  140.14 


 20210355 2021-10-11 LAYTON, RILEY PAYMENT  14.55


AUG/SEPT TIPS AUG SEPT TIPS  14.55 


 20210356 2021-10-11 MICROAGE ALBERTA LTD. PAYMENT  328.13


19763 COMPUTER  328.13 


 20210357 2021-10-11 NELSON, HARLEY PAYMENT  128.28


AUG SEPT TIPS AUG SEPT TIPS  128.28 


 20210358 2021-10-11 NELSON, MATAYA PAYMENT  21.08


AUG/SEPT TIPS AUG SEPT TIPS  21.08 


 20210359 2021-10-11 NEXTGEN AUTOMATION, DIGITAL CONNECTION INC. PAYMENT  335.09


358386 PHOTO COPIES  335.09 


 20210360 2021-10-11 RAY, HANNAH LOVE PAYMENT  184.20


AUG/SEPT TIPS AUG SEPT TIPS  184.20 


 20210361 2021-10-11 SKOIEN PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION PAYMENT  1,496.25


INV-0745 CFO SERVICES  1,496.25 


 20210362 2021-10-11 SMITH, WAYNE PAYMENT  50.00


SEPT 2021 MPC MTG SEPT 28  50.00 


 20210363 2021-10-11 VAN DAN'S PAYMENT  649.00


2021 REC 49/50 REC BOARD - GLENWOOD DAYS  352.85 


2021-01 BREAKFA COUNCIL BREAKFAST  274.25 


2021-49 IRRIGATION CONNECTION  21.90 


 20210365 2021-10-11 WORKER'S COMPENSATION BOARD - ALBERTA PAYMENT  871.47


2587443 WCB INSTALLMENT  871.47 


 20210366 2021-10-28 TATLOW, ROBERT & SHERRI PAYMENT  414.00


2021.ELECTIONS ELECTION WORKER  414.00 


 20210367 2021-10-28 ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES CORPORATION PAYMENT  3,835.60


21-1040560 UTILITIES  3,835.60 


 20210368 2021-10-28 Alberta Queen's Printer PAYMENT  60.85


S094445 UPDATES FOR BOOKS  60.85 


 20210369 2021-10-28 ATB FINANCIAL MASTERCARD PAYMENT  2,197.39


2021.NOV POSTAGE, PHONE,ELECTION,WTPLANT 1,647.57 


2021.OCT POSTAGE. PHONE, LIBRARY  549.82 


 20210370 2021-10-28 CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES PAYMENT  83.00


IVC00020631 REG DEM CONTRACT  83.00 


 20210371 2021-10-28 CARTER, GERALD PAYMENT  41.30







 6:42:24PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2021-Nov-16Cheque Listing For Council


Page 2 of 2


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20210371 2021-10-28 CARTER, GERALD 2021.OCT COUNCIL TRAVEL  41.30  41.30


 20210372 2021-10-28 CLARK, RUSTY PAYMENT  191.30


2021.OCT ELECTRONIC & TRAVEL  191.30 


 20210373 2021-10-28 D J EQUIPMENT RENTALS & SALES PAYMENT  164.85


37303 EQUIPMENT TO BLOW LINES  164.85 


 20210374 2021-10-28 EDWARDS, JANET PAYMENT  194.63


2021.OCT ELECTIONS, W T PLANT  138.28 


leto 053005 WATER PLANT SUPPLIES  56.35 


 20210375 2021-10-28 LYBBERT, BARTON PAYMENT  194.00


2021.GW DAYS GLENWOOD DAYS  194.00 


 20210376 2021-10-28 MUNICIPAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC. PAYMENT  304.51


20211634 PROGRAM SUPPORT  304.51 


 20210377 2021-10-28 PINCHER CREEK CO-OP PAYMENT  189.24


00280767A GLENWOOD DAYS & SHOP SUPPLIES  154.14 


00286151A OFFICE SUPPLIES  35.10 


 20210378 2021-10-28 VAN DAN'S PAYMENT  56.60


2021-48-47 WATER PLANT, MAINTENANCE  56.60 


 20210379 2021-10-28 VILLAGE OF HILL SPRING PAYMENT  103.00


20210037 ELECTION SUPPLIES  55.50 


20210038 WEBINAR CARRIE  47.50 


 20210380 2021-10-28 WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FIN CO PAYMENT  440.72


5016781407 10/29/2021-11/28/2021  220.36 


5017252952 11/29/2021-12/28/2021  220.36 


 20210381 2021-10-28 PAXMAN, ELBERT PAYMENT  75.00


2021.G. DAYS GLENWOOD DAYS  75.00 


 20210382 2021-10-28 SHIPLEY, TIM PAYMENT  75.00


2021.G.DAYS GLENWOOD DAYS  75.00 


 20210383 2021-10-28 HUNSPERGER, PERRY


 20210384 2021-10-28 EDWARDS, JANET


 20210385 2021-10-28 KINAHAN, CARRIE


 20210386 2021-10-28 CARTER, GERALD


 20210387 2021-10-28 ELIAS, JONAS


 20210388 2021-10-28 LYBBERT, BART


 20210389 2021-10-28 ROLFSON, DAVID


 20210390 2021-10-28 CLARK, RUSTY


*** End of Report ***


Total  23,243.45








 6:39:12PM


2021-Nov-16


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 1 of 10


Tax Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-102 Taxes - Chinook Foundation (5,847.32) (5,829.16) (5,900.00) (5,729.13) (170.87)


1-00-00-00-00-103 Taxes - Non-Residential (52,143.99) (49,550.53) (53,200.00) (51,020.63) (2,179.37)


1-00-00-00-00-105 Taxes - Linear (14,004.13) (16,244.27) (14,300.00) (16,757.09)  2,457.09 


1-00-00-00-00-108 Taxes - Residential (227,298.55) (228,324.21) (231,800.00) (232,138.39)  338.39 


1-00-00-00-00-110 Taxes - M&E (22,805.99) (22,800.00) (23,300.00) (23,300.00)  0.00 


*        TOTAL Tax Revenue (322,099.98) (322,748.17) (328,500.00) (328,945.24) 445.24


General Government Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-590 Other Revenue from Own Sources (1,221.00) (1,050.00) (300.00) (384.51)  84.51 


1-12-00-00-00-410 Photocopy,Fax, etc Revenue (172.05) (223.65) (180.00) (695.55)  515.55 


1-12-00-00-00-433 Assessment Appeal Deposit (50.00)  0.00 (100.00)  0.00 (100.00)


1-12-00-00-00-525 License - Business (280.00)  166.00 (240.00) (340.00)  100.00 


1-12-00-00-00-561 Xplornet (2,970.46) (3,020.80) (2,000.00) (2,587.78)  587.78 


1-00-00-00-00-510 Taxes - Penalties & Costs (1,893.08) (3,969.49) (4,000.00) (2,403.61) (1,596.39)


1-00-00-00-00-541 Franchise & Concession ATCO Revenue (18,354.44) (12,083.20) (18,400.00) (16,029.81) (2,370.19)


1-00-00-00-00-550 Return on Investments (5,804.40) (3,253.92) (3,500.00) (2,171.03) (1,328.97)


*        TOTAL General Gov't Revenue (30,745.43) (23,435.06) (28,720.00) (24,612.29) (4,107.71)


Operating Grant Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-748 Grant Misc (1,500.00) (89,517.16) (25,300.00) (2,700.00) (22,600.00)


1-00-00-00-00-751 Grants - ACP Intermunicipal (4,414.89)  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


1-00-00-00-00-843 Grant - MSI Operational (34,147.00) (31,607.00) (23,705.00) (31,063.00)  7,358.00 


*        TOTAL Operating Grant Revenue (40,061.89) (121,124.16) (49,005.00) (33,763.00) (15,242.00)







 6:39:12PM


2021-Nov-16


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 2 of 10


Protective Services Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-990 Other Rev - NSF,  Fines, Lease (35.00) (974.89) (200.00)  0.00 (200.00)


*        TOTAL Protective Services Rev (35.00) (974.89) (200.00) 0.00 (200.00)


Transportation Service Revenue


1-30-00-00-00-410 Equipment Pool Revenue (110.00) (276.79) (200.00)  0.00 (200.00)


1-32-00-00-00-591 Snow Removal Roads & Streets (400.00) (140.00) (100.00)  0.00 (100.00)


*        TOTAL Trans Service Revenue (510.00) (416.79) (300.00) 0.00 (300.00)


Water Revenue


1-41-00-00-00-120 Water Connection Install (5,000.00) (9,000.00) (1,000.00) (30.00) (970.00)


1-41-00-00-00-121 Water On/Off Fee (270.00) (240.00) (100.00) (180.00)  80.00 


1-41-00-00-00-410 Sales - Water (123,579.31) (118,210.05) (120,400.00) (90,773.42) (29,626.58)


1-41-00-00-00-411 Water - Bulk Sales (3,578.42) (5,708.00) (3,000.00) (4,703.42)  1,703.42 


1-41-00-00-00-510 Water - Penalties & Costs (222.93) (359.10) (500.00) (467.80) (32.20)


*        TOTAL Water Revenue (132,650.66) (133,517.15) (125,000.00) (96,154.64) (28,845.36)


Irrigation Revenue


1-40-00-00-00-410 Sales - Irrigation (11,292.32) (16,809.76) (17,000.00) (20,156.00)  3,156.00 


*        TOTAL Irrigation Revenue (11,292.32) (16,809.76) (17,000.00) (20,156.00) 3,156.00


Sewer Revenue


1-42-00-00-00-120 Sewer Connection Install (2,000.00) (7,000.00) (1,000.00)  0.00 (1,000.00)


1-42-00-00-00-410 Sales - Sewer (22,578.00) (20,830.00) (21,400.00) (18,298.00) (3,102.00)


1-42-00-00-00-411 Sales - Sewer RV Dumping Station (3,126.35) (3,454.50) (3,000.00) (3,519.75)  519.75 


1-42-00-00-00-412 Sewer RV Campground Agreements (4,000.00) (2,125.00) (2,000.00) (2,025.00)  25.00 


*        TOTAL Sewer Revenue (31,704.35) (33,409.50) (27,400.00) (23,842.75) (3,557.25)







 6:39:12PM


2021-Nov-16


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 3 of 10


Waste Management  Revenue


1-43-00-00-00-410 Sales - Solid Waste (12,992.00) (14,428.01) (14,000.00) (13,056.00) (944.00)


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Rev (12,992.00) (14,428.01) (14,000.00) (13,056.00) (944.00)


Cemetery Revenue


1-56-00-00-00-410 Cemetery - Plots & Fees (1,130.00) (265.00) (600.00) (799.50)  199.50 


1-56-00-00-00-420 Cemetery - Donations (1,250.00) (504.19) (500.00) (346.49) (153.51)


1-56-00-00-00-430 Cemetery County Contribution  0.00 (2,293.55) (1,375.00) (4,228.61)  2,853.61 


*        TOTAL Cemetery Revenue (2,380.00) (3,062.74) (2,475.00) (5,374.60) 2,899.60


Recreation & Culture Revenue


1-74-02-00-00-560 Rentals Community Hall (1,988.75) (500.00) (1,000.00) (100.00) (900.00)


1-72-00-00-00-410 Sales & Services - Recreation (399.50)  0.00 (100.00) (100.00)  0.00 


1-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Revenue (45,806.31) (44,388.59) (40,200.00) (41,988.94)  1,788.94 


1-74-04-00-00-410 Pioneer Days funds-fireworks donations (2,950.00) (533.45) (3,000.00) (6,756.85)  3,756.85 


1-74-05-00-00-474 Post Office Rental Revenue (1,400.00) (2,200.00) (2,400.00) (2,000.00) (400.00)


*        TOTAL Rec & Culture Rev (52,544.56) (47,622.04) (46,700.00) (50,945.79) 4,245.79


Planning & Development Revenue


1-12-00-00-00-490 Permit - Dev/Compliance  415.00 (800.00) (200.00) (2,185.00)  1,985.00 


1-95-00-00-00-763 Transfers From Reserves - Capital  0.00  0.00 (5,000.00)  0.00 (5,000.00)


*        TOTAL Planning & Development R 415.00 (800.00) (5,200.00) (2,185.00) (3,015.00)


**       TOTAL Revenue (636,601.19) (718,348.27) (644,500.00) (599,035.31) (45,464.69)







 6:39:12PM


2021-Nov-16


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 4 of 10


Council Expenses


2-11-00-00-00-153 Council Honorariums  10,700.00  6,300.00  11,000.00  6,450.00  4,550.00 


2-11-00-00-00-213 Council Travel  3,826.16  2,049.25  6,000.00  619.20  5,380.80 


2-11-00-00-00-520 Council Misc  2,322.89  995.10  4,000.00  1,401.25  2,598.75 


*        TOTAL Council Expenses 16,849.05 9,344.35 21,000.00 8,470.45 12,529.55


Administration Expenses


2-12-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Admin  84,671.54  88,743.01  70,300.00  65,335.00  4,965.00 


2-12-00-00-00-113 Travel & Training - CAO  2,895.42  1,741.51  4,250.00  593.54  3,656.46 


2-12-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Admin  6,119.31  5,842.04  5,000.00  5,494.07 (494.07)


2-12-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Admin  15,592.87  16,205.25  12,600.00  12,454.00  146.00 


2-12-00-00-00-142 Workers Compensation Admin  2,551.22  2,928.52  3,000.00  2,444.67  555.33 


2-12-00-00-00-150 Election & Census  0.00  329.50  2,000.00  510.93  1,489.07 


2-12-00-00-00-210 Travel & Training - ADMIN  1,366.96  599.15  2,000.00  551.67  1,448.33 


2-12-00-00-00-215 Telephone Land Line Admin  1,044.19  1,046.03  1,500.00  973.13  526.87 


2-12-00-00-00-216 Fax Land Line Admin  891.36  906.26  1,000.00  679.69  320.31 


2-12-00-00-00-220 Advert, Printing, Memberships Admin  5,863.37  6,935.61  6,600.00  5,943.05  656.95 


2-12-00-00-00-230 Professional & Consulting Admin  34,959.05  28,262.62  31,500.00  27,285.11  4,214.89 


2-12-00-00-00-235 Postage & Freight Admin  2,056.94  1,865.66  2,500.00  1,339.54  1,160.46 


2-12-00-00-00-270 Misc Expense Admin  1,510.48  1,483.48  600.00  815.71 (215.71)


2-12-00-00-00-274 Insurance Admin  13,446.10  14,241.85  14,100.00  14,657.05 (557.05)


2-12-00-00-00-280 Reg Fees Land Titles  90.00  65.00  200.00  110.00  90.00 


2-12-00-00-00-290 Office Bldg Maintenance Admin  505.83  514.53  800.00  16.48  783.52 


2-12-00-00-00-300 Assessor Fees Admin  7,927.50  7,910.00  8,400.00  5,967.51  2,432.49 


2-12-00-00-00-510 Office Expense Admin  4,758.90  2,256.04  2,750.00  2,249.93  500.07 


2-12-00-00-00-520 Web Hosting Admin  1,250.00  1,415.71  1,300.00  1,250.00  50.00 


2-12-00-00-00-540 Administration Utilities Power  2,685.91  2,667.05  2,750.00  2,580.38  169.62 


2-12-00-00-00-541 Administration Utilities Gas  1,413.95  1,372.11  1,500.00  1,030.14  469.86 


2-12-00-00-00-810 Bank Charges Admin  2,729.48  1,753.36  2,750.00  1,121.47  1,628.53 


2-12-00-00-00-999 Adm - Amortization  178,644.74  180,762.80  228,900.00  0.00  228,900.00 


*        TOTAL Administration Expenses 372,975.12 369,847.09 406,300.00 153,403.07 252,896.93







 6:39:12PM


2021-Nov-16


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 5 of 10


Protective Services Expenses


2-23-00-00-00-110 Fire & Emergency Management wages  250.00  150.00  1,000.00  150.00  850.00 


2-23-00-00-00-130 Employer source deduction Fire  0.00  0.00  50.00  0.00  50.00 


2-23-00-00-00-270 Fire Misc  361.63  1,196.02  1,000.00  655.70  344.30 


2-23-00-00-00-510 Fire Goods & Supplies  0.00  8.38  50.00  8.38  41.62 


2-23-00-00-00-540 Fire Utilities Power  2,092.38  2,151.83  1,950.00  1,910.05  39.95 


2-23-00-00-00-541 Fire Utilities Gas  2,404.72  2,381.70  1,900.00  1,688.68  211.32 


2-23-00-00-00-750 Fire Requisition  6,104.64  6,125.70  11,500.00  5,888.36  5,611.64 


2-23-00-00-00-760 Fire Dispatch Services  1,150.24  1,185.00  1,200.00  900.30  299.70 


2-23-00-00-00-770 Victim Services  600.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-23-00-00-00-260 Emergency Management Goods and Services  0.00  0.00  3,300.00  1,352.34  1,947.66 


*        TOTAL Protective Services Exp 12,963.61 13,198.63 22,450.00 12,553.81 9,896.19


Shop Expenses


2-30-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Equip Pool  3,101.60  3,157.23  2,800.00  2,693.95  106.05 


2-30-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Equip Pool  197.70  204.81  200.00  199.46  0.54 


2-30-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Equip Pool  1,101.66  1,071.90  200.00  979.04 (779.04)


2-31-00-00-00-110 Village Maintenance Wages  15,508.12  15,785.82  13,900.00  13,469.95  430.05 


2-31-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions V-Main  988.33  1,024.23  900.00  997.44 (97.44)


2-31-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefits Vlg Maint  970.94  704.18  1,000.00  922.88  77.12 


2-31-00-00-00-250 Vlg Maint Contracted Services  228.64  150.00  5,000.00  1,512.47  3,487.53 


2-31-00-00-00-510 Vlg Maint Tools, Hardware, Op  993.12  985.81  2,000.00  563.46  1,436.54 


2-31-00-00-00-524 Vlg Maint Equip Supplies  2,298.06  363.54  2,000.00  124.68  1,875.32 


2-31-00-00-00-526 Vlg Maint Equip Supply Tractor  920.01  736.14  800.00  1,734.00 (934.00)


2-31-00-00-00-527 Vlg Maint Fuel  2,547.96  931.71  3,200.00  1,427.38  1,772.62 


2-31-00-00-00-550 Safety Gear  151.32  333.57  500.00  32.99  467.01 


2-32-00-00-00-215 Telephone Shop  589.30  798.28  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-32-00-00-00-217 Cell Phone Foreman  1,292.00  1,072.59  900.00  761.33  138.67 


*        TOTAL Shop Expenses 30,888.76 27,319.81 33,400.00 25,419.03 7,980.97







 6:39:12PM


2021-Nov-16


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 6 of 10


Road & Street Expenses


2-32-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Streets & Roads  17,839.28  19,053.59  17,400.00  14,326.91  3,073.09 


2-32-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deduct Streets & Roads  1,041.20  1,198.92  1,100.00  1,029.84  70.16 


2-32-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deduct Streets & Roads  970.94  724.90  1,200.00  922.91  277.09 


2-32-00-00-00-250 Streets & Roads Contracted Services  1,177.00  2,414.00  2,000.00  303.24  1,696.76 


2-32-00-00-00-260 Streets & Roads Goods & Servcies  482.62  3,534.43  1,000.00  0.00  1,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-530 Streets & Roads Maint Materials  3,001.28  1,333.69  11,000.00  167.96  10,832.04 


2-32-00-00-00-540 Streetlights  12,329.42  12,464.92  12,200.00  10,512.52  1,687.48 


*        TOTAL Road & Street Expenses 36,841.74 40,724.45 45,900.00 27,263.38 18,636.62


Irrigation Expenses


2-40-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Irrigation  8,534.35  8,870.61  7,000.00  5,352.94  1,647.06 


2-40-00-00-00-250 Irrg System Contracted Services  0.00  700.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-40-00-00-00-252 Irrg System Maint  973.75  312.16  750.00  179.33  570.67 


2-40-00-00-00-540 Irrg System Utilities Power  2,598.47  3,212.49  3,700.00  3,726.97 (26.97)


*        TOTAL Irrigation Expenses 12,106.57 13,095.26 11,950.00 9,259.24 2,690.76


Water Expenses


2-41-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Water  21,831.84  22,002.16  29,800.00  17,368.42  12,431.58 


2-41-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Water  1,763.93  1,891.36  2,700.00  1,544.02  1,155.98 


2-41-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Water  1,846.51  1,346.13  2,300.00  1,541.01  758.99 


2-41-00-00-00-210 Water - Seminars & Travel  3,553.10  2,046.86  3,000.00  393.66  2,606.34 


2-41-00-00-00-215 Telephone Water Plant  1,191.36  906.26  1,100.00  679.70  420.30 


2-41-00-00-00-250 Water Supply Contracted Services  12,015.10  17,733.46  11,000.00  4,910.48  6,089.52 


2-41-00-00-00-252 Water Supply Maint  2,451.60  4,134.23  3,000.00  5,646.28 (2,646.28)


2-41-00-00-00-270 Water Supply Misc  31.14  0.00  1,500.00  31.34  1,468.66 


2-41-00-00-00-510 Water Supply Goods & Service  4,464.17  6,753.58  6,500.00  3,124.16  3,375.84 


2-41-00-00-00-540 Water Supply Utilities Power  12,076.98  12,077.73  10,900.00  11,834.86 (934.86)


2-41-00-00-00-541 Water Supply Utilities Gas  3,545.23  3,994.76  3,900.00  2,928.56  971.44 


2-41-00-00-00-905 Water Billing Discount  3,655.62  3,902.56  3,500.00  0.00  3,500.00 


*        TOTAL Water Expenses 68,426.58 76,789.09 79,200.00 50,002.49 29,197.51







 6:39:12PM


2021-Nov-16


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 7 of 10


Sewer Expenses


2-42-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Sewer  3,101.60  3,157.23  2,800.00  2,693.95  106.05 


2-42-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Sewer  197.70  204.81  200.00  199.46  0.54 


2-42-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Sewer  276.80  224.38  200.00  256.85 (56.85)


2-42-00-00-00-250 Sewer Contracted Services  2,481.70  10,375.80  5,250.00  105.03  5,144.97 


2-42-00-00-00-510 Sewer Goods & Services  0.00  0.00  250.00  80.23  169.77 


2-42-00-00-00-905 Sewer Billing Discount  0.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  250.00 


*        TOTAL Sewer Expenses 6,057.80 13,962.22 8,950.00 3,335.52 5,614.48


Waste Management Expenses


2-43-00-00-00-250 Solid Waste Contracted Services  0.00  10,099.50  250.00  3,580.00 (3,330.00)


2-43-00-00-00-510 Solid Waste Goods & Services  0.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  250.00 


2-43-00-00-00-750 Solid Waste Requisition - CMRSWA  7,792.56  8,187.56  9,339.00  8,674.20  664.80 


2-43-00-00-00-752 Requisition - County Transfer Station  3,126.80  4,050.48  4,100.00  4,234.02 (134.02)


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Expenses 10,919.36 22,337.54 13,939.00 16,488.22 (2,549.22)


Cemetery Expenses


2-56-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Cemetery  3,346.52  5,713.55  2,100.00  3,550.91 (1,450.91)


2-56-00-00-00-510 Cemetery Goods & Services  200.00  2,039.97  250.00  178.05  71.95 


2-56-00-00-00-540 Cemetery Utilities Power  1,006.25  1,012.86  1,100.00  894.68  205.32 


2-56-00-00-00-620 Cemetery Transfer to Reserves  0.00  0.00  500.00  1,057.14 (557.14)


*        TOTAL Cemetery Expenses 4,552.77 8,766.38 3,950.00 5,680.78 (1,730.78)


Planning & Development Expense


2-76-00-00-00-250 Development Contracted Services  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-76-00-00-00-251 Planning - GIS  1,681.12  7,115.10  1,730.00  5,595.24 (3,865.24)


2-76-00-00-00-252 ORRSC Requisition  3,863.00  0.00  3,800.00  18,500.00 (14,700.00)


*        TOTAL Planning & Dev Expenses 5,544.12 7,115.10 6,030.00 24,095.24 (18,065.24)







 6:39:12PM


2021-Nov-16


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 8 of 10


Parks & Recreation Expenses


2-62-00-00-00-201 Community Service Misc  0.00  19.05  500.00  326.55  173.45 


2-74-04-00-00-510 Pioneer Days Fireworks  3,150.00  0.00  3,000.00  6,160.60 (3,160.60)


2-72-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Parks & Rec  5,978.61  7,187.03  2,000.00  4,407.98 (2,407.98)


2-72-00-00-00-725 Recreation Expenses (Vlg USE ONLY)  1,142.36  31.58  3,500.00  236.27  3,263.73 


2-72-00-00-00-540 Recreation Utilities Power  1,064.68  1,076.29  1,000.00  938.45  61.55 


2-72-00-00-00-541 Recreation Utilities Gas  855.88  881.23  800.00  700.06  99.94 


*        TOTAL Parks & Rec Expenses 12,191.53 9,195.18 10,800.00 12,769.91 (1,969.91)


Library Expenses


2-74-01-00-00-250 Library Contracted Services  886.57  2,086.75  1,000.00  125.00  875.00 


2-74-01-00-00-510 Library Goods and Services  10.45  75.13  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-74-01-00-00-750 Library Society Operating Support  15,000.00  15,000.00  15,000.00  15,000.00  0.00 


2-74-01-00-00-771 Requisition Chinook Arch Library  2,531.16  2,581.72  2,600.00  2,452.16  147.84 


*        TOTAL Library Expenses 18,428.18 19,743.60 19,100.00 17,577.16 1,522.84


Community Hall Expenses


2-74-02-00-00-110 Salaries and Wages Community Hall  1,275.00  350.00  2,800.00  0.00  2,800.00 


2-74-02-00-00-250 Community Hall Contracted Service  315.00  150.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-74-02-00-00-510 Community Hall Goods & Service  1,601.89  1,430.28  1,000.00  433.42  566.58 


2-74-02-00-00-540 Community Hall Utilities Power  2,108.79  2,328.34  1,500.00  1,726.33 (226.33)


2-74-02-00-00-541 Community Hall Utilities Gas  1,456.03  1,313.63  1,125.00  1,074.45  50.55 


*        TOTAL Community Hall Expenses 6,756.71 5,572.25 6,925.00 3,234.20 3,690.80


Pioneer Parlour Expenses


2-74-03-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Pioneer Parlour  22,604.66  19,639.26  20,200.00  16,170.90  4,029.10 


2-74-03-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions PP  1,014.14  824.45  700.00  609.44  90.56 


2-74-03-00-00-250 Pioneer Parlour Contracted Services  1,432.00  332.00  1,500.00  0.00  1,500.00 


2-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Expenses (Bldg)  2,786.58  1,199.16  1,000.00  1,821.12 (821.12)


2-74-03-00-00-510 Pioneer Parlour Goods & Services  21,312.83  19,885.77  14,000.00  20,857.34 (6,857.34)


2-74-03-00-00-540 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Power  1,702.28  1,627.95  1,700.00  1,534.22  165.78 


2-74-03-00-00-541 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Gas  1,019.48  1,027.70  1,100.00  811.14  288.86 


2-74-03-00-00-810 Pioneer Parlour Merchant Fees  0.00  3,671.72  0.00  38.56 (38.56)


*        TOTAL Pioneer Parlour Expenses 51,871.97 48,208.01 40,200.00 41,842.72 (1,642.72)







 6:39:12PM


2021-Nov-16


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 9 of 10


Post Office Expenses


2-74-05-00-00-540 Post Office Utilities Power  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-74-05-00-00-541 Post Office Utilities Gas  0.00  0.00  375.00  0.00  375.00 


*        TOTAL Post Office Exp 0.00 0.00 875.00 0.00 875.00


Community Support Requisitions


2-26-00-00-00-100 Requisition - Policing  0.00  5,585.00  8,384.00  5,640.00  2,744.00 


2-62-00-00-00-206 Com Services: Beautification  1,788.75  119.31  0.00  213.06 (213.06)


2-62-00-00-00-208 Spring Glen Park Req/Exp/Donate  1,428.57  1,500.00  1,500.00  1,500.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-209 Com Services: Glenwood Seniors Req  500.00  500.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-62-00-00-00-210 Com Services: FCSS Requisition  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-750 Com Services: Farm Safety Ctr Donation  300.00  300.00  300.00  300.00  0.00 


2-72-00-00-00-750 Recreation Brd Expenses (Vlg DON'T USE )  801.01  0.00  500.00  194.00  306.00 


2-98-00-00-00-102 Req Chinook Foundation  5,870.52  5,828.54  5,900.00  5,733.49  166.51 


2-98-00-00-00-108 Req United Irrigation Dist  4,553.30  4,689.90  5,200.00  4,830.60  369.40 


2-98-00-00-00-115 Req School Foundation  71,341.78  71,145.90  72,600.00  35,572.95  37,027.05 


2-98-00-00-00-116 DESIGNATED INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY 


(DIP)


 47.17  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-12-00-00-00-763 Operating Transfer to Reserves  0.00  0.00  40,001.00  0.00  40,001.00 


*        TOTAL Community Support Requis 89,077.10 92,114.65 137,331.00 56,430.10 80,900.90


**       TOTAL Expenses 756,450.97 777,333.61 868,300.00 467,825.32 400,474.68


***      TOTAL Revenues Over Expenses 119,849.78 58,985.34 223,800.00 (131,209.99) 355,009.99







 6:39:12PM


2021-Nov-16


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 10 of 10


Capital Grants Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-842 Grant - MSI Capital (91,802.29) (94,708.13) (236,900.00) (250,752.00)  13,852.00 


1-00-00-00-00-846 Grants - FGTF/NDCC  0.00 (119,000.00) (50,000.00)  0.00 (50,000.00)


*        TOTAL Cap Grants Rev (91,802.29) (213,708.13) (286,900.00) (250,752.00) (36,148.00)


**       TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE (91,802.29) (213,708.13) (286,900.00) (250,752.00) (36,148.00)


Capital Expenses


2-23-00-00-00-762 Protective Serv-Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  30,000.00  15,082.48  14,917.52 


2-31-00-00-00-762 Vlg Maint - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  25,000.00  4,365.00  20,635.00 


2-32-00-00-00-762 Strts & Rds - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  10,000.00  4,405.00  5,595.00 


2-40-00-00-00-762 Irrigation - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  5,000.00  3,200.00  1,800.00 


2-41-00-00-00-762 Water - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  206,900.00  63,756.74  143,143.26 


2-42-00-00-00-762 Sewer - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  15,000.00  0.00  15,000.00 


2-71-00-00-00-762 Parks & Recreation - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  0.00  1,220.48 (1,220.48)


*        TOTAL Capital Expenses 0.00 0.00 291,900.00 92,029.70 199,870.30


**       TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 291,900.00 92,029.70 199,870.30


***      Revenues Over Expense/Capital (91,802.29) (213,708.13) 5,000.00 (158,722.30) 163,722.30


*** End of Report ***





